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December 17, 2019
To the Board of Directors and Customers of Soquel
Creek Water District:
We are pleased to present the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Soquel Creek
Water District (SqCWD or District) for the ϐiscal
year from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. State law
requires all special-purpose local governments to
publish the basic ϐinancial statements contained
in this report within six months of the close of
the agency’s ϐiscal year. The purpose of this
comprehensive report is to provide the Board of
Directors, the public and other interested parties
with reliable ϐinancial information about the
District. This report conforms to the reporting
and accounting standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the
ϐinancial reporting guidelines recommended by the
Government Finance Ofϐicers Association (GFOA)
of the United States and Canada.
Management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, including all disclosures,
based upon a framework of internal controls that
was established for this purpose. The District
maintains an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the District are protected
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the
preparation of ϐinancial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed the anticipated beneϐits, the objective
is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the ϐinancial statements are free of
any material misstatements.

District policy requires that an independent
certiϐied public accounting ϐirm, selected by
the Board of Directors, audit the basic ϐinancial
statements on an annual basis to ensure they are
free of material misstatement. Fedak & Brown
LLP has issued an unmodiϐied (or clean) opinion
on the District’s basic ϐinancial statements for the
ϐiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Independent
Auditor’s Report is presented as the ϐirst
component of the ϐinancial section of this report.
GAAP requires that management provide an
overview, summary and analysis to accompany
the basic ϐinancial statements. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately
follows the Independent Auditor’s Report in the
ϐinancial section. This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the analysis contained in
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
the ϐinancial section of this report. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the District’s ϐinancial
position have been included.

Overview of the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
This report is presented in three sections:
• Introduction – includes this letter of
transmittal, a list of principal ofϐicials, and an
organizational chart.
• Financial Section – includes the Independent
Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), the basic audited ϐinancial
statements, and required supplementary
information (RSI).
• Statistical Section – includes information on
ϐinancial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity,
demographic and economic conditions, and
multi-year comparative operational data.
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Proϐile of Soquel Creek Water District
Soquel Creek Water District is located in midSanta Cruz County, and provides potable drinking
water and groundwater resource management
to portions of the City of Capitola and the
unincorporated communities of Aptos, La Selva
Beach, Rio Del Mar, Seascape, Seacliff Beach and
Soquel. SqCWD serves a population of over 40,000
residents through approximately 14,400 water
service connections.
Soquel Creek County Water District was founded
in 1961 by local ballot measure to provide ϐlood
control and water conservation services along
Soquel Creek. The District became a water
purveyor in 1964 with the acquisition of the
Monterey Bay Water Company and transferred
ϐlood control services to the County. In 1981,
SqCWD assumed responsibility for monitoring the
Santa Cruz Mid-County groundwater basin and
managing basin sustainability. In 1983, “County”
was dropped from the name and the District
became known simply as Soquel Creek Water
District.
Despite having ‘Soquel Creek’ in the name,
the District’s sole source of water supply
is groundwater. The District relies on two
groundwater aquifers in the Santa Cruz Mid-County
groundwater basin to provide 100 percent of the
water supplied to customers. The two primary
aquifers are the Purisima Aquifer Formation, which
provides two-thirds of the District’s water supply
for Capitola, Soquel and Aptos, and the Aromas
Red Sands Aquifer, which supplies the remaining
one-third of water to the Seascape, Rio Del Mar
and La Selva Beach communities. These aquifers
are shared with other water users, including
the City of Santa Cruz, Central Water District, a
few small mutual water agencies, a community
college, and private well owners. Over the years,
more water has been extracted from the shared
groundwater basin than has been naturally
replenished by rainfall, resulting in a state of
overdraft that leaves the basin vulnerable to
seawater intrusion along the coastline. Seawater

intrusion has been detected in coastal monitoring
wells in Aptos, Seascape and La Selva Beach, and
a recent innovative geophysical survey located
where the seawater intrusion interface is offshore.
The geophysical survey shows that seawater
intrusion is positioned immediately offshore in
some areas of the aquifers and onshore in others.
If allowed to move further inland, the seawater
could contaminate the District’s production
wells. The State Water Resources Control Board
has designated the Santa Cruz Mid-County
Groundwater Basin as a high priority basin and
“critically overdrafted”. The District partnered with
other users of the basin in 2016 to form the Santa
Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency, tasked
with developing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan
(GSP) by 2020 to guide sustainable management of
the groundwater basin.
Over the past 20 years, we have continued to
reϐine our understanding of the groundwater basin
and developed many studies and comprehensive
planning efforts to protect production wells from
seawater intrusion and assure a sustainable water
supply. In 2013, our approach to updating the
2006 Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) included
numerous public meetings and opportunities for
community members to provide input. The IRP
evolved to be renamed the Community Water
Plan in 2015 and serves as the District’s actionoriented roadmap to protect the endangered
groundwater resources, ensure water supply
reliability and resiliency to our customers, and
prepare for climate change and other future
challenges. The Community Water Plan promotes
water conservation, water neutral development,
groundwater management, and securing new
water supplies. The District has selected a
portfolio of potential supply options which
include advanced water puriϐication of recycled
wastewater for groundwater replenishment
(Pure Water Soquel), surface water transfers, and
stormwater capture.
The largest supply option, Pure Water Soquel,
involves recycling 25% of the secondary treated
municipal wastewater that is currently discharged
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to the Monterey Bay Marine Sanctuary from the
neighboring City of Santa Cruz, purifying it through
advanced puriϐication methods and replenishing
the groundwater basin through strategically
located recharge wells. This project will provide
a freshwater barrier against further seawater
intrusion, thus ensuring a reliable and droughtproof water supply and protecting the environment
by reducing the amount of treated wastewater
currently being discharged to the Monterey Bay
Sanctuary. In December 2018 the District certiϐied
the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the
advanced water puriϐication project known as Pure
Water Soquel and the board approved this project
to move forward. Grants and low interest loans are
being actively sought for this project.
In 2018, the District completed a series of water

quality tests to evaluate the impacts of purchasing
surface water from the City of Santa Cruz and
introducing it into the District’s groundwater
distribution system. From December 2018 to April
2019 surface water was imported into an isolated
section of the District’s service area to further
evaluate water quality and receive customer
feedback. It is expected this surface water pilot
testing will continue in 2019/20. Although there
is not enough surface water to reliably solve both
the City’s need for water in drought years and the
District’s need for a seawater intrusion barrier, it
is one more option in a diversiϐied water supply
portfolio.
Stormwater capture is another small water
supply option that continues to be evaluated in
conjunction with the County of Santa Cruz. The
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two agencies collaborated to conduct groundwater
recharge testing at two potential sites to
investigate the potential recharge from stormwater
capture projects. Evaluation of this supply option
is ongoing.
Service Area and Water System Facilities
The District’s service area encompasses seven
miles of shoreline along the northeastern curve
of the Monterey Bay and extends one to three
miles inland into the foothills of the Santa Cruz
Mountains. It is bordered on the west by the City
of Santa Cruz (SCWD), while Central Water District
(CWD) and the Pajaro Valley Water Management
Agency (PVWMA) are to the east. The City of
Capitola is the only incorporated area in the
District. Unincorporated communities include
Soquel, Aptos, Rio Del Mar, Seascape, and La Selva
Beach.
The District’s service area is further subdivided
into four distribution system service areas. These
areas are served by a system of ϐifteen active
production wells. The District supplies water
through a distribution system that includes
eighteen storage tanks, over 160 miles of water
mains, and approximately 14,400 service
connections. Two pump stations were completed
in 2017/18 that facilitate the transfer of water
between service areas, which is a key component
to distributing water from any future supplemental
supply source and ensuring overall water system
reliability.
Governance and Organizational Structure
SqCWD is a special district established by the
State of California. The District is governed by
a ϐive-member Board of Directors elected to
staggered four-year terms by voters who reside in
the District’s service area. The Board of Directors
currently oversee three standing committees that
are tasked to review, study and discuss proposals
and issues of speciϐic concern, to advise the Board
of Directors at large, and to provide feedback and
direction to staff. The standing committees include
Water Resource Management and Infrastructure
(formerly Supplemental Supply), Public Outreach,
and Finance and Administrative Services.

Membership on each standing committee includes
two Directors, two to four representatives from
the community, and related staff. Two District
directors are also selected by the District Board of
Directors to serve on the Santa Cruz Mid-County
Groundwater Agency Board, a Joint Powers
Authority (JPA) with a mission to ensure regional
groundwater sustainability.
The District was staffed in 2018/19 by 45.8
full-time equivalent employees assigned to ϐive
departments: Administration, Engineering,
Financial/Business Services, Conservation/
Customer Service Field, and Operations and
Maintenance. The General Manager and District
Counsel are appointed by, and report directly to,
the Board of Directors.
Accounting and Budget Structure
SqCWD operates as an enterprise fund with a
ϐiscal year that begins July 1 and ends on June 30.
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
require local governments to use a proprietarytype fund, such as an enterprise fund, to account
for business-type activities similar to those found
in the private sector. An enterprise fund is one
in which the expenditures are supported by
fees collected primarily through charging users
in exchange for services. SqCWD operations
are supported entirely by fees collected from
customers in exchange for providing water service
and managing the groundwater basin.
GAAP also requires the use of accrual accounting.
The budget is based on the same accrual approach
as the District’s audited ϐinancial statements with
some minor differences, such as the exclusion of
depreciation. Revenues are recognized on the
ϐinancial statements in the accounting period in
which they are earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred, even though they may not have
been received or paid in cash.
SqCWD is required to adopt a balanced budget
by July 1 of each ϐiscal year. A balanced budget is
recognized as current revenues equal to or greater
than current expenditures. The District includes
in its deϐinition of a balanced budget the use of
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reserves to augment current revenues. The rate
stabilization reserve and operating contingency
reserve (which are described under Financial
Policies) may be used to balance the budget upon
approval by a majority of the District Board of
Directors. The budget may only be amended
during the course of the ϐiscal year by Board action.
The Board considers the requests of staff to utilize
operating contingency reserve funds at regularly
scheduled meetings and approves or rejects the
requests by motion and majority vote. In years
where revenue falls signiϐicantly short of budget
expectations, comprehensive mid-year revisions
to the budget may be brought to the Board for
approval.
Financial Policies
The SqCWD ϐinancial policies include many of the
District’s ϐinancial management practices that are
used for operational and strategic decision making.
These policies also allow the Board of Directors
and community stakeholders to monitor how
effectively the District is managing its ϐinancial
responsibilities as well as providing a means for
holding the District ϐiscally accountable. These
policies are reviewed annually to incorporate
minor changes to existing policy or major shifts in
ϐinancial priorities at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.
• Investment Policy – This policy is intended to
provide a guideline for the prudent investment of
surplus cash, reserves, trust funds, and restricted
monies and to outline a policy for maximizing
the efϐiciency of the District’s cash management
system in compliance with Section 53646 of the
Government Code of California. The policy applies
to all ϐinancial assets of the District as accounted
for in the audited ϐinancial statements, with the
exception of the proceeds remaining from the 2013
Certiϐicates of Participation, which are authorized
for investment as deϐined in the Trust Agreement
dated July 1, 2013. The primary objectives of the
District’s investment activities, in order of priority,
are safety of principal through the mitigation of
both credit and market risk, maintenance of the
liquidity necessary to meet cash ϐlow needs and,
lastly, return on investment.

• Reserve Policy – The Reserve Policy was
amended in June 2017 to encompass both the
Operating Reserve Fund and a Capital Facilities
Reserve. The purpose of the operating reserve
is to ensure that the District will, at all times,
have sufϐicient funding available to meet annual
operating costs. The Operating Reserve Fund is a
combination of operating contingency reserves and
rate stabilization reserves that, when combined,
approximate 40% of the operating costs identiϐied
in the annual budget. The Capital Facilities Reserve
is part of the District’s commitment to the strategic
goal of maintaining a reliable water infrastructure
to ensure the delivery of high-quality, safe water.
The Capital Facilities Reserve will be funded as
gains in unrestricted net position are realized and
can be amended upon the approval of the Board.
These funds are allocated to the maintenance,
repair, replacement, or improvement of water
system infrastructure. Adequate reserves, along
with sound ϐinancial policies, provide ϐinancial
ϐlexibility to counter unanticipated expenditures or
revenue ϐluctuations.
• Purchasing Policy – The purchasing policy
is designed to assure that the District receives
maximum value for each dollar spent, to clearly
deϐine the authority of District staff to procure
supplies and services, and to establish the internal
controls necessary to ensure ϐinancial transactions
are properly recorded.
• Debt Management Policy – The Debt
Management Policy was adopted in June 2017 to
ensure ϐiscal responsibility and establish policies
for the responsible issuance and utilization of debt.
The District’s debt management policy allows the
use of debt for the acquisition, refurbishment,
replacement, or expansion of capital assets with a
minimum useful life equivalent to the term of debt
service. The debt coverage ratio is revenue net of
operating expenses divided by total debt service.
The District has identiϐied a minimum debt
coverage ratio goal of 170% (1.7). This means the
District would have enough revenue left over after
operating expenses have been paid to pay 1.7 times
the amount of debt service required.
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Economic Conditions
Soquel Creek Water District is located in mid-Santa
Cruz County, between the City of Santa Cruz and
the City of Watsonville. Mid-Santa Cruz County
is an important vacation and recreation area,
having a spectacular coastline, accessible beaches,
and forested mountains, all in close proximity to
several Northern California metropolitan areas.
Over the years, the District’s service area has
changed from a rural agricultural and weekend/
summer-resort water-use area to a permanent,
year-round, urbanized water-use area. Over 85%
of the District’s service connections are residential.
Job growth in recent years has been strongest
in education, health services, and hospitality
services. Forecasted population growth in the
SqCWD service area is expected to be fairly ϐlat,
growing less than 13% over the next twenty years
(Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments,
June 11, 2014). However, in recent years there has
been a push for legislation to remove barriers to
housing development due to a shortage of housing
in California.
Much of the District’s service area has been built
out, with most of the housing stock in Mid-Santa
Cruz County between 30 and 40 years of age (City
of Capitola 2015-2023 Housing Element). The
City of Capitola’s housing stock is comprised of
approximately 60 percent multifamily residential
units, which distinguishes it from other areas in
the SqCWD service area that are predominantly
single-family residences. Since the District has
little capacity to serve new customers due to
an overdrafted groundwater basin and the risk
of further seawater intrusion, Water Demand
Offset (WDO) Resolution 16-08 was created to
allow development without further impact to the
groundwater basin. Applicants for new water
service are currently required to offset twice the
amount of water the new development is expected
to use so there is no impact on the currently limited
supply. The developer cost of a WDO offset credit
is $55,000 per acre-foot (af), and a typical singlefamily home needs to purchase credits equal to
0.413 af (approximately $22,715). This cost is
in addition to other developer-paid fees, such as

water capacity charges and service installation
fees. Due in part to overdrafted groundwater
conditions, service connection growth is typically
minimal within the SqCWD service area and
developer fees are not a signiϐicant source of
revenue for the District.
Water Use and Emergency Water Rates
SqCWD operates as an enterprise fund, meaning
the costs of providing water service and protecting
groundwater resources are ϐinanced by rates and
fees charged to District customers. Since the
District receives no revenue from taxes, operating
revenues consist primarily of water sales and
monthly service charges.
The District hired Raftelis Financial Consultants
to conduct a new ϐive-year rate study in 2018/19
and new rates were adopted in compliance with
Proposition 218 effective March 1, 2019. The
rates changed from a four-tier inclining rate
structure to a two-tier inclining rate structure
because of changes in the cost of service proϐile.
Tier 1 represents the amount of water that can be
sustainably provided to each residential customer
account given the overdrafted groundwater
conditions, and Tier 2 represents water use above
sustainable pumping levels. The Board voted in
March 2019 to maintain a Stage 3 Groundwater
Emergency due to basin conditions but chose not
to continue to charge Stage 3 Emergency Rates.

Long-Term Financial Planning
Soquel Creek Water District utilizes a number of
planning strategies when considering long-term
ϐinancial forecasts.
• Strategic Plan – Strategic planning involves
establishing a vision for the future and a clear
mission statement to provide direction and deϐine
what the organization stands for and what it has
pledged to accomplish. In 2015, SqCWD held
department meetings and community public
meetings to get initial input on what is important
to our employees, ratepayers, and community. In
addition, a strategic planning workshop was held
for the Board of Directors, management, interested
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employees, and community at-large members.
The purpose of the workshop was to update the
District’s mission statement and values, and to
formulate the District’s values and organizational
goals which emphasize our commitment to
conservation, groundwater sustainability, and
a search for supplemental water supplies. The
Strategic Plan forms the basis for the District’s
priority-based budgeting efforts.
• Community Water Plan – This plan was identiϐied
during the strategic planning process as a key
strategy for engaging customers in long-range
water supply planning efforts. The purpose
of this plan is to inform customers about our
water challenges and the current actions being
undertaken to protect endangered groundwater
resources, ensure water supply reliability and
resiliency, and prepare for climate change and
future water supply challenges. Guiding Principles
were also developed in 2017 to provide additional
clarity and direction, and to help to convey to
the public the basis for reasoning and action
in the development and implementation of the
Community Water Plan.
• Capital Improvement Plan – The Strategic Plan
lays the groundwork for the Capital Improvement
Plan, which includes project schedules and
projected costs for production and water supply
facilities identiϐied in the Community Water Plan,
the 2010 Well Master Plan and the Facilities Master
Plan. The Capital Improvement Plan is a ten to
twenty-year forecast.
• 10-Year Finance Plan – Raftelis Financial
Consultants developed a new ϐinance plan in
August 2018 that includes short and long-range
projections of the District’s revenues, operating
and maintenance expenses, capital expenditures,
and reserves over the next ten years. The plan
includes design and construction of a $90 million
supplemental water supply project using the
projected costs for Pure Water Soquel, assuming
that the District would not opt for a more
expensive supply option if the less expensive Pure
Water Soquel project is determined feasible.

• Annual Budget – A key component of ϐinancial
planning is the District’s budget, which is prepared,
reviewed and adopted annually. Every spring,
District staff from each department prepare a
draft budget which is presented to the Board of
Directors for approval prior to the beginning of
the next ϐiscal year. The annual budget includes
forecasts for revenues, operating expenditures and
capital expenditures, and is formulated using a
priority-based budgeting approach.

Signiϐicant Accomplishments
Soquel Creek Water District’s strategic plan
identiϐied primary organizational goals that
embody what we believe should be the focus of
our day-to-day business activities and long-term
planning efforts. These goals provide a framework
for the accomplishments of the ϐiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. Accomplishments usually achieve
many goals but are categorized below to illustrate
our commitment to strategic planning initiatives.

Goal: Water Resource Management and
Sustainability
•

Pure Water Soquel – Pure Water Soquel is
a groundwater replenishment and seawater
intrusion prevention project that involves
using advanced puriϐication of already-treated
wastewater from the City of Santa Cruz
Wastewater Treatment Facility for recharging
the groundwater basin through strategically
located recharge wells. The Environmental
Impact Report (EIR) has been certiϐied and
the Board has approved this project to move
forward. Analysis of a monitoring well network
and design of the conveyance pipelines have
begun. The District also partnered with the
City of Santa Cruz on an award-winning tertiary
membrane pilot project to test wastewater
treatment methods.

•

Seawater Intrusion Prevention Pilot Well
– a recharge well was constructed at Twin
Lakes Church in Aptos in preparation for pilot
testing water recharge as a barrier to seawater
intrusion.
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Award-winning Tertiary Membrane Pilot Project

•

Surface Water Exchange with the City of
Santa Cruz – the District completed isolation
testing of the distribution system and
successfully transferred almost 300 acre feet
of excess surface winter water from the City.
Stringent water quality testing was conducted
before, during and after the transfer of water.

•

Stormwater Capture – coordinated with
County of Santa Cruz Water Resources staff
to investigate stormwater recharge potential
at several sites within the District. Further
evaluation at the sites will be conducted
to determine feasibility, beneϐit to the
groundwater basin, and project cost.

•

Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)
– continued work with the Santa Cruz MidCounty Groundwater Agency (MGA), which
was formed in 2015/16 with the City of
Santa Cruz, the County of Santa Cruz, Central
Water District, and private well owners in

the basin under the mandate of the 2014
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.
The District and its MGA partners are leaders
in Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)
formation, and work has continued on the
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The
GSP is required to be completed by 2020.
•

Groundwater Model – the District continues to
work with the MGA to develop a groundwater
computer model to better understand basin
hydrology and sustainability.

•

Conservation – over 450 rebates were granted
for the installation of water-saving ϐixtures,
including over 300 rebates for the installation
of ultra-high efϐiciency toilets as part of the
Water Demand Offset program and 60 turf
replacement rebates. Revisions were made
to the graywater rebate to remove barriers to
participation.
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Goal: Infrastructure and Delivery
•

Water Delivery – produced and treated 1.08
billion gallons of drinking water for delivery to
homes and businesses.

•

Sewer Lateral at Ledyard Well – completed
installation of a sewer lateral at Ledyard Well
that will enable the District to install a chlorine
analyzer at this site to improve water quality
and to pump the well waste water directly to
the sewer rather than the storm drain.

•

Service Area 3 to 4 Intertie Design – installed
a new 12-inch water main between Seascape
and La Selva Beach to provide a redundant
water supply to the communities of Los
Barrancos, La Selva Beach, and Canon Del Sol.

•

Quail Run Buried Concrete Tank Design
– completed design of a new 410,000 gallon
pre-stressed concrete water storage tank in
Service Area II and continued utility relocation
coordination and easement acquisitions.

•

Soquel Drive Main Replacement – the District
continued design for the Soquel Drive Cast
Iron Main Replacement project, which has
been expanded to include Haas Drive and a
pressure reducing valve for Mar Vista Drive.
Construction is expected to commence in
2019/20.

•

O'Neill Well Ammonia Mitigation –
implemented several packer modiϐications and
conducted a sodium hypochlorite dosing study
to mitigate the ammonia levels at the O’Neill
Well.

•

Vacuum Excavator Truck – acquired a vacuum
excavator truck with greater spoils capacity to
improve productivity and reduce the length of
time to repair a main break.

•

Public Safety Power Shut Off – acquired
mobile refueling equipment and a second
portable load bank to ensure generator

coverage at critical well sites in the event of an
extended power outage.
•

Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) –
cinitiated a project to upgrade water meters
to AMI and completed a health and safety
assessment of AMI as related to radio frequency
(RF) technology to ensure the safety and
welfare of District customers. This project is
expected to be complete in summer 2020.

Goal: Community Engagement and Trust
•

Water Quality Testing – the District performed
over 13,000 water quality tests on water
samples from the distribution system to test
water quality for over 170 compounds. The
District also completed lead testing in drinking
water at six additional schools.

•

Water Wise Academy– developed, hosted
and graduated ϐive community members from
the District’s ϐirst Water Wise Academy. The
Academy is a three-session program where
participants can gain a thorough understanding
of how the District operates, learn about critical
water issues, tour District facilities, and interact
with Board members and staff to facilitate
engagement and foster trust.

•

Community Outreach and Engagement
– collaborated with the county-wide Water
Conservation Coalition to help fund numerous
water conservation events, including a Cabrillo
College Extension graywater class, a turf
removal workshop, and outreach at the County
Fair and Earth Day events. Also participated in
several conservation outreach events including
the Santa Cruz Business Expo and an efϐicient
landscape irrigation workshop for professional
landscapers and municipal parks staff.
District staff also conducted 17 community
presentations on the Community Water Plan,
held 14 one-on-one meetings with members
of the community, and transported the Water
Education Trailer to 11 community events.
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•

Groundwater Well Monitoring and
Mitigation Program – this ongoing program
assesses the impacts of groundwater pumping
on Soquel Creek stream ϐlows, as well as the
effect on private wells near O’Neill Ranch and
the City of Santa Cruz’s Beltz well. The costs of
this program are shared with the City of Santa
Cruz.

•

Socrata Open Finance – as part of the
conversion to the new ϐinance and billing
software, the District began development of a
website portal that allows customers access
to the District’s ϐinancial data, including
warrants, budget comparisons, and ϐinancial
performance. It is expected that this site will be
available to the public in 2019/20.

•

Special District Leadership Foundation
Transparency Certiϐicate – the District
received, for the third time, the Special District
Leadership Foundation’s Transparency
Certiϐicate of Excellence that promotes
transparency in special district operations and
governance.

•

Water Rates Advisory Committee – the
Water Rates Advisory Committee, comprised
of representatives from the District Board
of Directors, staff and 10 community
representatives, continued to evaluate rate
structure alternatives and advise the Board
during the development of the new ϐinance plan
and rate study.

Award-winning Water Education Trailer
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Goal: Fiscal Responsibility
•

Pilot Project for Financial Sustainability
– In 2018, the District was one of only 27
agencies nationwide to participate in a pilot
program on achieving and maintaining ϐinancial
sustainability through the Government Finance
Ofϐicers Association (GFOA). Development of a
ϐinancial sustainability framework will continue
in 2019/20.

•

Finance Plan and Rate Study – Raftelis
Financial Consultants developed a new 10-year
ϐinance plan and conducted a comprehensive
rate study. A public hearing on rates was held
February 19, 2019 and new rates were adopted
effective March 1, 2019.

•

Early Adoption of SB998 – the District
enacted the tenets of State Bill 998 that allows
an extended period before the shut off of
residential water service for nonpayment.
Compliance with this statute was not required
until 2020 but the District elected to adopt
the statute early to coincide with the ϐinancial
and utility billing software conversion and
to minimize the impact of multiple system
changes on customers.

•

•

•

Enterprise Resource Program (ERP) –
sthe District converted to new ϐinancial and
utility billing software to provide enhanced
functionality for District customers at a lower
annual maintenance cost than the existing
vendor.
Grant Submissions – both federal and state
grant and low interest loan opportunities
continue to be sought for the Pure Water Soquel
project. A letter of interest was submitted to
the Environmental Protection Agency for the
Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation
Act (WIFIA) program.
Efϐiciency Improvements and Asset
Maintenance – replaced two aging,
maintenance-intensive ϐleet vehicles,
upgraded to energy-efϐicient lighting at

District headquarters as well as remote sites,
replaced roof gutters at six remote facilities
and the District shop building, and replaced the
Operations and Maintenance building roof.

Goal: Customer Service
•

Applicant Installed Services– administered
and inspected 47 domestic water service and
ϐire service installations and continued to assist
35 applicants whose services are not yet in
construction. Completed design review, project
administration and construction oversight for
the main relocation at Capitola Library, the ϐire
service installation at Soquel High School, and
the main replacement at New Brighton Middle
School. The ϐinance team improved the closing
procedures for applicant installed services to
allow for faster refunds of deposits in excess of
costs.

•

Leak Detection – the Customer Service Field
team investigated 750 cases of high water use
and assisted customers to identify potential
causes, as well as following up on almost
1,400 leak alerts. The water maintenance
ϐield crew repaired 70 service line leaks. The
billing department revised the leak adjustment
policy to allow more ϐlexibility for subsequent
leak requests and processed over 450 leak
adjustments due to unintentional water leaks.

•

Water Wise House Calls and Water Audits
– conducted 90 free Water-Wise home and
business surveys for District customers and
educated them on water-saving ϐixtures and
appliances.

•

Water Demand Offset (WDO) Program – met
with over 40 new water service applicants
to provide details on the WDO program and
assisted approximately 50 active development
project applicants with the transition to the
revised WDO program.

•

Enterprise Resource Program (ERP) –
transitioned customers to a new online
billing portal and facilitated re-enrollment in
automatic payment programs.
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•

CalPERS Health Coverage Contract – revised
the CalPERS Public Employees Medical and
Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) contract for health
coverage for retired employees and assisted
retirees with the transition.

Goal: Workforce and Organizational
Excellence
•

Cybersecurity Training – continued the
Cybersecurity Awareness Training campaign
to train employees and board members on
security awareness and to conduct simulated
phishing attacks to enhance employee
mindfulness to cybersecurity issues.

•

Information Technology – managed an
upgrade to Field Mapplet and updated GIS
and Database management programs such as
Mapplet, Digital Library, and WISKI. Began
replacement of computer workstations as part
of the Windows 10 initiative.

•

•

•

Operational Improvements – began using
cordless landscaping tools when possible to
reduce noise and pollution; switched remote
radios to new frequencies. Transitioned to
a fully paperless Service Installation Order
process to reduce waste and improve workϐlow.
Recognition – received the Government
Finance Ofϐicers Association (GFOA)
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
for the 2018/19 Budget, and the Certiϐicate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting for the 2018 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). The District was
also awarded the National Outreach Award by
WaterReuse for the Water Education Trailer.
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Soquel Creek Water District
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Soquel Creek Water District
Soquel, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Soquel Creek
Water District (District), as of the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Soquel Creek Water District, as of June
30, 2019 and 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Independent Auditor’s Report, continued
Emphasis of a Matter
As discussed in note 9 to the financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, the District
restated its net position for the inclusion of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency as an
investment equity of a joint-powers authority (JPA). Our opinions are not modified with respect to these
matters.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 29 through 40 and the required supplementary information on pages 81
through 86 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section on pages 9 through 24, and
statistical section on pages 91 through 105, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17,
2019, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance. This report can be found on pages 89 and 90.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 17, 2019
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Management's
Discussion and
Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

The following Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) of activities and ϐinancial
performance of the Soquel Creek Water District
(District) provides an introduction to the ϐinancial
statements of the District for the ϐiscal years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. We encourage readers
to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the transmittal letter in the
Introductory Section and with the accompanying
basic ϐinancial statements and related notes, which
follow this section.
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Soquel Creek Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial Highlights
•

The District’s net position increased 5.69% or
$2,951,086 to $54,809,028. In fiscal year 2018,
the District’s net position increased 9.08% or
$4,316,289 to $51,857,942.

•

The District’s operating revenues decreased
0.68% or $127,952 to $18,563,912.  This
decrease was primarily due to slightly
lower water consumption in fiscal year 2019
compared to fiscal year 2018 as well as a
change in the District’s tiered water rate
structure that resulted in larger quantities of
water being charged at a lower per unit price.
The decrease in water consumption revenue

•

was largely offset by increased service charge
revenue due to a rate increase in April 2019.
In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating
revenues increased 16.25%, or $2,613,021 to
$18,691,864.

The District’s operating expenses increased
14.57%, or $1,772,402 to $13,937,542 due
mainly to increased source of supply costs.
Source of supply costs increased by $1,948,901
or 83.11% compared to fiscal year 2018 due to
increased spending on the District’s advanced
purified water supplemental supply project,
Pure Water Soquel. In fiscal year 2018, the
District’s operating expenses increased 9.47%,
or $1,052,327 to $12,165,140.

Changes in Operating Revenues, Expenses
and Net Position
Changes in Operating
Revenues, Expenses
and Net Position
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$50,000,000

$50,000,000
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$30,000,000

20182019

$30,000,000

$20,000,000
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$20,000,000

$10,000,000
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Operating revenues
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Operating expenses

Net position

Net position
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Soquel Creek Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Required Financial Statements

Financial Analysis of the District

This annual report consists of a series of financial
statements. The Statements of Net Position,
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position, and Statements of Cash Flows provide
information about the activities and performance
of the District using accounting methods similar to
those used by private sector companies.

One of the most important questions asked about
the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off
or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?”
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
report information about the District in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources using
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to
the accounting method used by most private sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are taken into account when earned or
incurred, regardless of when the cash is received or
paid.

The Statements of Net Position include all of
the District’s investments in resources (assets),
deferred outflows of resources, the obligations
to creditors (liabilities), and deferred inflows of
resources. It also provides the basis for computing
a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure
of the District and assessing the liquidity and
financial flexibility of the District.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position include all revenues and
expenses earned and incurred during the period.
These statements measure the success of the
District’s operations over time and can be used to
determine if the District has successfully recovered
all of its costs through its rates and other charges.
These statements can also be used to evaluate
profitability and creditworthiness.

The final required financial statements are
the Statements of Cash Flows, which provide
information about the District’s cash receipts and
cash payments during the reporting period. The
Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash
payments and net changes in cash resulting from
operations, investing, non-capital financing, and
capital and related financing activities, and provide
answers to such questions as where did cash come
from, what was cash used for, and what was the
change in cash balance during the reporting period.
The notes provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements. The
notes to the basic financial statements can be
found on pages 48 through 80.

These two statements report the District’s net
position and changes in them. You can think of the
District’s net position – the difference between
assets plus deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities plus deferred outflows of resources
– as one way to measure the District’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the District’s net position are
one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. However, one will also
need to consider other non-financial factors such
as changes in economic conditions, population
growth, and new or changed government
legislation (such as changes in Federal and State
water quality standards or GASB reporting
requirements).
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Soquel Creek Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Condensed Financial Statements
Condensed Statements of Net Position

2019
Assets:
Current assets
Non‐current assets
Capital assets, net

$

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Non‐current liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

As Restated
2018

Change

2017

Change

25,853,144
7,416,972
66,495,189

25,752,046
7,659,979
64,321,902

101,098
(243,007)
2,173,287

24,083,909
6,701,304
62,933,044

1,668,137
958,675
1,388,858

99,765,305

97,733,927

2,031,378

93,718,257

4,015,670

2,963,863

3,405,925

(442,062)

2,318,110

1,087,815

5,263,059
42,279,556

4,328,922
44,401,766

934,137
(2,122,210)

3,482,011
44,633,039

846,911
(231,273)

47,542,615

48,730,688

(1,188,073)

48,115,050

615,638

377,525

551,222

(173,697)

379,664

171,558

34,380,386
10,885,856
9,542,786

31,201,206
11,081,277
9,575,459

3,179,180
(195,421)
(32,673)

28,798,189
11,774,100
6,969,364

2,403,017
(692,823)
2,606,095

54,809,028

51,857,942

2,951,086

47,541,653

4,316,289

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time
as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets plus
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources by $54,809,028
and $51,857,942 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The largest increase in the District’s
assets was due to an increase in net capital assets
of $2,173,287 or 3.37% compared to fiscal year
2018. The major increases in capitalized assets
were related to the District’s production wells and
water mains. Production well assets increased
by $1,607,222, or 21.96%, and water main assets
increased by $4,470,300, or 12.47% compared to
the prior year. Some of these additions to capital
assets were the result of capitalizing expenditures
from prior years that were recorded in the
District’s non-depreciable Construction in Process
(CIP) asset which had a decrease of $3,090,640 or
36.34%.
The changes in deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources are due to
the requirements of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statements 68 and 75 (GASB 68

and GASB 75). GASB 68 requires such items as
changes in the District’s unfunded pension liability,
changes in actuarial assumptions, and the pension
contribution made during 2019 to be recorded as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows
of resources as appropriate.  GASB 75 has similar
requirements and follows similar accounting
treatment as GASB 68 but relates to the District’s
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB).
Compared to the prior year, the net position of
the District increased $2,951,086 or 5.69%. The
District’s total net position is made up of three
components: (1) investment in capital assets;
(2) restricted net position; (3) unrestricted net
position. The largest portion of the District’s net
position (62.73% and 60.17% as of June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively) reflects the District’s
investment in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The District
uses these capital assets to provide services to
customers within the District’s service area;
consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending.
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Soquel Creek Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019

2018

$9,542,786

$9,575,459

$11,081,277
$10,885,856
$31,201,206

$34,380,386

Investment in Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal years 2019 and 2018,
the District showed a positive balance in its
unrestricted net assets of $9,542,786 and
$9,575,459 which may be utilized in future years.  
See note 10 of the financial statements for further
information.

Restricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets

The statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position show how the District’s net
position changed during the fiscal year. In the case
of the District, net position increased 5.69% or
$2,951,086 to $54,809,028, as a result of ongoing
operations. In fiscal year 2018, the District’s
net position increased 9.08% or $4,316,289 to
$51,857,942 from ongoing operations.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2019
Revenues:
Operating revenues
Non‐operating revenues

$

As Restated
2018

Change

2017

Change

18,563,912
623,701

18,691,864
372,032

(127,952)
251,669

16,078,843
192,018

2,613,021
180,014

Total revenues

19,187,613

19,063,896

123,717

16,270,861

2,793,035

Expenses:
Operating expenses
Depreciation
Non‐operating expenses

13,937,542
2,470,516
1,401,049

12,165,140
2,679,579
1,294,877

1,772,402
(209,063)
106,172

11,112,813
2,592,842
778,948

1,052,327
86,737
515,929

Total expenses

17,809,107

16,139,596

1,669,511

14,484,603

1,654,993

Net income before capital

1,378,506

2,924,300

(1,545,794)

1,786,258

1,138,042

Capital contributions

1,572,580

1,039,918

989,082

50,836

2,951,086

3,964,218

(1,013,132)

2,775,340

1,188,878

51,857,942

47,541,653

4,316,289

51,045,920

(3,504,267)

(6,279,607)

6,631,678

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of period
as previously stated
Prior period adjustment (note 4)

352,071

Net position at beginning of period,
as restated
Net position ‐ end of period

$

532,662

(352,071)

51,857,942

47,893,724

3,964,218

44,766,313

3,127,411

54,809,028

51,857,942

2,951,086

47,541,653

4,316,289
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Soquel Creek Water District
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Changes in Revenue by Category

Total Revenues
The District’s total revenues increased 3.26%
or $656,379 to $20,760,193. In fiscal year 2018,
the District’s total revenue increased 16.39%
or $2,829,887 to $20,100,086. The District’s
total revenue is made up of three components –
operating revenue, non-operating revenue, and
capital contributions. Operating revenue is derived
from the District’s operations in supplying its
customers with potable water. Non-operating
revenue arises from other District activities not
directly related to supplying water such as interest
earnings on investments. Capital contributions are
recognized when an asset is given to the District or
when the District receives grant funds from a local,
state, or federal agency.

The District’s operating revenues decreased
$127,952 due primarily to a decrease of $549,322
in water consumption sales; which was offset by
increases of $387,998 in water service charges and
$33,372 in other charges for services. Compared
to the prior year, water consumption decreased in
2019 by 86 acre feet/year (AFY) which resulted in
lower water consumption sales. Additionally, due
to a legal settlement, the District was required to
change its tiered billing structure from four tiers
to three tiers which resulted in more water being
billed in a lower tier and at a lower per unit price
2019
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Water service charges
Other charges for services

$

Total operating revenues
Non‐operating revenue:
Interest earnings
Rental revenue
Other non‐operating revenue
Total non‐operating revenues
Capital contributions
Total revenues

$

$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
2017
$6,000,000

2018
2019

$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$-

Water consumption
sales

Water service charges

Other revenue sources

The District's
primary source
of revenue is
from water rates
and fees, which
are comprised
of water
consumption
sales and
monthly water
service charges.

As Restated
2018

Change

2017

Change

11,366,972
7,081,809
115,131

11,916,294
6,693,811
81,759

(549,322)
387,998
33,372

9,953,612
6,035,938
89,293

1,962,682
657,873
(7,534)

18,563,912

18,691,864

(127,952)

16,078,843

2,613,021

620,252
‐
3,449

370,577
1,455
‐

249,675
(1,455)
3,449

180,818
11,200
‐

189,759
(9,745)
‐

623,701

372,032

251,669

192,018

180,014

1,572,580

1,039,918

532,662

989,082

50,836

20,760,193

20,103,814

656,379

17,259,943

2,843,871
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(one unit is 748 gallons) than in ϐiscal year 2018.
The amended tier structure was in effect from July
2018 through April 2019 when a new water rate
tier structure was adopted. In ϐiscal year 2018, the
District’s operating revenues increased $2,613,021
due primarily to increases of $1,962,682 in water
consumption sales and $657,873 in water service
charges.
The District’s non-operating revenues increased
$251,669 due primarily to an increase of $249,675
in investment earnings. Investment earnings are
comprised of $580,236 in interest earnings and
$40,016 in unrealized gain on investment. In ϐiscal
year 2018, the District’s non-operating revenues
increased $180,014 due primarily to an increase of
$189,759 in investment earnings.
The District’s capital contributions increased
51.22% or $532,662 to $1,572,580. The increase
is mainly due to a State Water Resources Control
Board Proposition 1 grant that the District
was awarded in relation to its advanced water
puriϐication project Pure Water Soquel. In ϐiscal
year 2018, the District’s total capital contributions
increased 5.14% or $50,836 to $1,039,918.

Total Expenses
The District’s total expenses increased 10.34% or
$1,669,511 to $17,809,107. In ϐiscal year 2018,
the District’s total expenses increased 11.43% or
$1,654,993 to $16,139,596.
The District’s operating expenses increased
$1,772,402 due primarily to an increase of
$1,948,901 or 83.11% in source of supply
expenses. The increased source of supply expenses
are due to increased spending on the Pure Water
Soquel project. The Pure Water Soquel project
is a supplemental supply project that aims to
prevent seawater intrusion into the critically overdrafted groundwater basin by replenishing the
basin with advanced puriϐied reclaimed water. In
ϐiscal year 2018, the District’s operating expenses
increased $1,052,327 due primarily to increases of
$189,622 in source of supply, $587,878 in general
and administrative expenses, and $279,883 in
transmission and distribution expenses.
The District’s non-operating expenses increased
$106,172 due primarily to an increase of $131,183
in the change in equity investment in the Santa

AsRestated
2018

Change

2017

Change

$ 4,293,876
1,099,645
627,657
1,441,931
1,053,216
5,421,217

2,344,975
944,174
770,566
1,608,590
906,794
5,590,041

1,948,901
155,471
(142,909)
(166,659)
146,422
(168,824)

2,155,353
900,209
915,758
1,328,707
810,623
5,002,163

189,622
43,965
(145,192)
279,883
96,171
587,878

13,937,542

12,165,140

1,772,402

11,112,813

1,052,327

Depreciationexpense

2,470,516

2,679,579

(209,063)

2,592,842

86,737

NonͲoperatingexpenses:
Interestexpense
ChangeininvestmentinJPA
Rentalpropertyexpense
OthernonͲoperatingexpense

740,732
660,317
Ͳ
Ͳ

759,151
529,134
Ͳ
6,592

(18,419)
131,183
Ͳ
(6,592)

772,052
Ͳ
5,270
1,626

(12,901)
529,134
(5,270)
4,966

1,401,049

1,294,877

106,172

778,948

515,929

$ 17,809,107

16,139,596

1,669,511

14,484,603

1,654,993

2019
Operatingexpenses:
Sourceofsupply
Pumping
Watertreatment
Transmissionanddistribution
Customerservice
Generalandadministrative
Totaloperatingexpenses

TotalnonͲoperatingexpenses
Totalexpenses
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Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (SCMGA)
and a decrease of $18,419 in interest expense.
The District is a member of the SCMGA which
is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) formed with
three other local water agencies and three private
well owners that pump water from the same
groundwater basin. The JPA was formed according
to the requirements of the State of California
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014
which mandated the creation of a groundwater
sustainability agency. Because the District is
entitled to a proportionate share of the SCMGA’s

net assets, the District accounts for a portion of
the SCMGA’s net position as an investment in JPA
according to the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14.
This is a change in accounting treatment from prior
fiscal years, resulting in a prior period adjustment
to the 2018 financial statements.  In fiscal year
2018, the District’s non-operating expenses
increased $515,929 due primarily to an increase
of $529,134 in the change in investment in the
SCMGA which was offset by a decrease of $12,901
in interest expense.

Changes in Expenses by Category
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$-

2017

2018

2019
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Capital Asset Administration
At the end of fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the
District’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$66,495,189 and $64,321,902 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets

includes land, transmission and distribution
systems, buildings, equipment, vehicles,
construction-in-process, etc. See note 4 for further
information.

Changes in capital assets amounts for 2019, were as follows:
Balance
2018
Capital assets:
Non‐depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

Transfers/
Deletions

Additions

Balance
2019

$

13,886,843
98,670,433
(48,235,374)

5,206,735
7,929,006
(2,470,516)

(8,091,413)
(423,114)
55,649

11,002,165
106,176,325
(50,650,241)

$

64,321,902

10,665,225

(8,458,878)

66,528,249

Changes in capital assets amounts for 2018, were as follows:
Balance
2017
Capital assets:
Non‐depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

Transfers/
Deletions

Additions

Balance
2018

$

12,265,496
96,282,926
(45,615,378)

4,386,724
2,453,682
(2,679,579)

(2,765,377)
(66,175)
59,583

13,886,843
98,670,433
(48,235,374)

$

62,103,624

4,160,827

(2,771,969)

64,321,902
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Debt Administration
In fiscal years 2019 and 2018, long-term debt
decreased by $1,005,893 and $1,026,921,
respectively, due primarily to principal payments.
See note 6 for further information.

In 2019 the District had two outstanding debt
obligations, the 2011 Certificates of Participation
and the 2013 Certificates of Participation.

Changes in long‐term debt amounts for 2019, were as follows:
Balance
2018
Long‐term debt:
Certificates‐of‐participation
Total long‐term debt
Less: current portion
Non‐current portion

$

Additions

Deletions

Balance
2019

33,120,696

‐

(1,005,893)

32,114,803

33,120,696
(980,000)

‐

(1,005,893)

32,114,803
(1,065,000)

32,140,696

31,049,803

Changes in long‐term debt amounts for 2018, were as follows:
Balance
2017
Long‐term debt:
Bonds payable
Certificates‐of‐participation

$

Total long‐term debt
Less: current portion
Non‐current portion

$

Additions

Deletions

621,028
33,526,589

‐
‐

(621,028)
(405,893)

34,147,617
(1,001,028)

‐

(1,026,921)

33,146,589

Balance
2018
‐
33,120,696
33,120,696
(980,000)
32,140,696
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Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Debt service coverage decreased in 2019 to
2.30 from 3.09 in 2018. Although there was a
decrease in the coverage ratio compared to 2018,
the District’s existing bond covenants require a
minimum debt coverage ratio of 1.20. The District’s
adopted debt management policy established a

minimum target for debt coverage of 1.70 which
is also significantly below the 2.30 coverage ratio
achieved in 2019. The debt service coverage ratios
for fiscal years 2019 and 2018, were as follows:

The debt service coverage for fiscal years 2019 and 2018 was as follows:
2019
Revenues:
Water consumption sales
Water service charges
Water capacity fees
Investment earnings
Other/miscellaneous

$

2018

11,366,972
7,081,809
360,352
620,252
118,580

$

11,916,294
6,693,811
764,862
370,577
83,214

19,547,965

19,828,758

7,463,109
1,053,216
5,421,217

5,668,305
906,794
5,590,041

13,937,542

12,165,140

Net revenues

5,610,423

7,663,618

Debt service (due in fiscal year)

2,444,231

2,480,459

2.30

3.09

Total revenues
Operating and maintenance expenses:
Cost of sales
Customer expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses

Debt service coverage
Net income after debt service

$

3,166,192

$

5,183,159

Note: Operating and maintenance expenses may include some non‐operating expenses that the District funds
through its operating fund.
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Conditions Affecting Current
Financial Position
Management is unaware of any conditions, which
could have a significant impact on the District’s
current financial position, net position, or
operating results in terms of past, present, and
future periods.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide the
District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders
and other interested parties with an overview of
the District’s financial operations and financial
condition. Should the reader have questions
regarding the information included in this report,
or wish to request additional financial information,
please contact the District’s Finance & Business
Services Manager, Leslie Strohm, at Soquel
Creek Water District, 5180 Soquel Drive, Soquel
California 95073 or (831) 475-8500.

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 40 of 105

Basic Financial Statements

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 41 of 105

This page intentionally left blank

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 42 of 105

Soquel Creek Water District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted (note 2)
Investments (note 2)
Accrued interest receivable
Accrued interest receivable - restricted
Accounts receivable – water sales and services, net
Accounts receivable – other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

$

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Investments (note 2)
Investments - restricted (note 2)
Investment in joint-powers authority (note 3)
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 4)
Capital assets, net – being depreciated (note 4)
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred OPEB outflows (note 8)
Deferred pension outflows (note 7)
Total deferred outflows of resources

$

As Restated
2018

11,417,729
9,239,582
1,192,000
25,042
90,545
2,169,028
937,230
626,040
155,948

12,075,016
9,511,348
992,000
83,644
21,897
2,311,626
205,474
377,286
173,755

25,853,144

25,752,046

5,428,000
1,588,048
400,924
10,969,105
55,526,084

5,884,000
1,548,032
227,947
13,886,843
50,435,059

73,912,161

71,981,881

99,765,305

97,733,927

781,944
2,181,919

703,806
2,702,119

2,963,863

3,405,925

Continued on next page
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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As Restated
2018

2019
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Unearned revenue and other deposits
Accrued interest payable
Long-term liabilities – due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 5)
Certificates-of-participation (note 6)

$

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:
Compensated absences (note 5)
Certificates-of-participation (note 6)
Net pension liability (note 7)
Net OPEB liability (note 8)
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred OPEB inflows (note 8)
Deferred pension inflows (note 7)
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position: (note 10)
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted – capital projects
Restricted – debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$

1,930,548
239,181
1,400,342
475,011

1,495,502
194,327
1,035,104
488,077

152,977
1,065,000

135,912
980,000

5,263,059

4,328,922

458,929
31,049,803
7,135,537
3,635,287

407,737
32,140,696
7,831,149
4,022,184

42,279,556

44,401,766

47,542,615

48,730,688

66,320
311,205

78,555
472,667

377,525

551,222

34,380,386
6,489,633
4,396,223
9,542,786

31,201,206
6,927,653
4,153,624
9,575,459

54,809,028

51,857,942

-

-
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As Restated
2018

2019
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Water service charges
Other charges for services

$

11,366,972
7,081,809
115,131

11,916,294
6,693,811
81,759

Total operating revenues

18,563,912

18,691,864

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer service and meter reading
General and administrative

4,293,876
1,099,645
627,657
1,441,931
1,053,216
5,421,217

2,344,975
944,174
770,566
1,608,590
906,794
5,590,041

Total operating expenses

13,937,542

12,165,140

Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation

4,626,370
(2,470,516)

6,526,724
(2,679,579)

2,155,854

3,847,145

Operating income
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings
Rental revenue
Interest expense
Changes in investment in joint-powers authority
Other non-operating revenue(expense), net
Total non-operating revenue(expenses), net
Net income before capital contributions
Capital contributions:
State capital grants
Capacity charges
Capital contributions
Total capital contributions
Changes in net position
Net position, beginning of period
Net position, end of period
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$

620,252
(740,732)
(660,317)
3,449

370,577
1,455
(759,151)
(529,134)
(6,592)

(777,348)

(922,845)

1,378,506

2,924,300

1,024,244
360,352
187,984

38,113
764,862
236,943

1,572,580

1,039,918

2,951,086

3,964,218

51,857,942

47,893,724

54,809,028

51,857,942

-

-
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2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash used in capital and related financing
activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Sales of investments
Contributions to investment in JPA
Rental revenue
Investment earnings
Net cash used in investing activities
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash
equivalents

2018

18,339,992
(3,731,059)
(10,699,968)

18,964,546
(3,414,483)
(8,432,811)

3,908,965

7,117,252

(4,643,803)
1,572,580
(1,005,893)
(753,798)

(4,068,437)
1,039,918
(1,026,921)
(754,111)

(4,830,914)

(4,809,551)

296,016
(833,294)
530,174

(1,218,272)
(405,010)
1,455
305,696

(7,104)

(1,316,131)

(929,053)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

991,570

21,586,364

20,594,794

$

20,657,311

21,586,364

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statements
of net position
Cash and cash equivalents
$
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

11,417,729
9,239,582

12,075,016
9,511,348

20,657,311

21,586,364

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Total cash and cash equivalents
Continued on next page

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2019

2018

2,155,854

3,847,145

2,470,516
3,449

2,679,579
(6,592)

142,598
(731,756)
(248,754)
17,807

(371,949)
308,780
(53,406)
(7,567)

(78,138)
520,200

(105,769)
(994,808)

435,046
44,854
365,238
68,257
(386,897)
(695,612)

515,282
4,657
335,851
79,487
(358,010)
1,073,014

(12,235)
(161,462)

78,555
93,003

1,753,111

3,270,107

$

3,908,965

7,117,252

$

40,016

3,728

-

-

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Other non-operating expense
Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase)decrease in assets and deferred outflows:
Accounts receivable – water sales and services, net
Accounts receivable – other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits
Deferred OPEB outflows
Deferred pension outflows
Increase(decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Unearned revenue and other deposits
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Deferred OPEB inflows
Deferred pension inflows
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
Non-cash investing, capital, and financing transactions:
Change in fair value of investments
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity
The Soquel Creek Water District (District) was incorporated in 1961 under the name Soquel Creek County
Water District. The District became known as the Soquel Creek Water District in 1983. In 1964, the District
acquired the Monterey Bay Water Company and provides water resource management services within the
mid-Santa Cruz County. The purpose of the District is to finance, construct, operate, and maintain a water
system to serve properties within the District’s boundaries. The District’s service area encompasses seven
miles of shoreline and extends from one to three miles inland into the foothills of the Santa Cruz Mountains.
The City of Capitola is the only incorporated area in the District. Unincorporated communities include
Aptos, La Selva Beach, Opal Cliffs, Rio Del Mar, Seascape, and Soquel. The District is governed by a
Board of Directors made up of five members elected by qualified voters in the District.
The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity.
The District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing
board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The
District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and:
1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants, and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place.
Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal value. Management, administration, and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
C. Financial Reporting
The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District solely operates as a specialpurpose government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly, activities are
reported in the District’s proprietary fund.
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(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

C. Financial Reporting, continued
The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year:
In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 – Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs),
(2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the liability
is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best
estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value of a
government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation at least annually, and (6)
requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions
used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible
capital assets.
In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures Related to Debt Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt.
This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.
This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial
statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in
debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant
termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.
For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
1. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows and disclosures of contingent assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows at the date of the financial statements and the reported
changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents.
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(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
3. Investments and Investment Policy
The District has adopted an investment policy directing the Financial and Business Manager to invest
public funds in a manner which will provide the maximum security with best investment return, while
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the District and conforming to all state and local statutes
governing the investment in public funds in accordance with California Code section 53601, including
the District’s existing debt covenants.
Per the investment policy, the District will match its investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Per California Government Code Section 53601, maximum term of any investment
authorized under this section, unless otherwise stated, is five years. However, the District’s governing
body may grant express authority to make investments either specifically or as a part of an investment
program approved by the governing body that exceeds this five-year maturity limit. Such approval must
be issued no less than three months prior to the purchase of any security exceeding the five-year
maturity limit.
Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.
4. Fair Value Measurements
The District categorizes its investment within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset as follows:
•

Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

•

Level 2 – Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs
incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals.

•

Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity, and other assumptions
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

5. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management deems
customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the direct write-off method to write-off those
accounts.
6. Prepaid Expenses
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.
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Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued
7. Materials and Supplies Inventory
Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe, and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is valued
at cost using the first-in first-out method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that
individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.
8. Capital Assets
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at acquisition
value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or losses are
recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:
•
•
•

Transmission and distribution system – 20 to 33 years
Structures and improvements – 20 to 50 years
Vehicles and equipment – 5 to 10 years

9. Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that is applicable to future
periods.
10. Customer Deposits
The District does not require customers to routinely pay an advance deposit for utility services. Deposits
are collected when the District cannot establish a customer’s creditworthiness or when collection
problems occur.
11. Compensated Absences
Accumulated unpaid employee vacation and sick benefits are recognized as a liability of the District.
Such compensation is calculated at the employee’s prevailing rate at the time of retirement or
termination. Sick leave benefits are prorated based on the number of days accumulated.
12. Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that is applicable to future periods.
13. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
District’s Retiree Health Plan and additions to/deductions from the District’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the District. For this purpose, the District
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and participating interest-earning
investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported
at cost.
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Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
14. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and addition to/deduction
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain
defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:
•
•
•

Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:
Measurement Period:

June 30, 2017 and 2016
June 30, 2018 and 2017
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

15. Net Position
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:
•

Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

•

Restricted net position – consists of constraints placed on net position use through external
constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

•

Unrestricted net position – consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
restricted or net investment in capital assets components of net position.

16. Water Sales and Services
Water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis and are recognize when the respective revenues are
earned.
17. Capital Contributions
Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property
owners, granting agencies, or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures
or capacity commitment.
18. Budgetary Policies
The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services.
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Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments
Non-current investments
Non-current investments - restricted
Total cash and investments

2018

$

11,417,729
9,239,582
1,192,000
5,428,000
1,588,048

12,075,016
9,511,348
992,000
5,884,000
1,548,032

$

28,865,359

30,010,396

Cash and investments as of June 30, consist of the following:
2019

2018

Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments

$

600
2,851,477
26,013,282

600
1,784,564
28,225,232

Total cash and investments

$

28,865,359

30,010,396

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements
of the District; rather, the table addresses the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy.

Authorized
Investment Type
U.S. Treasury Notes
Banker's Acceptances
Commercial Paper - Non Pooled Funds
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
CD Placement Service
Medium-Term Corporate Notes
Mutual Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
Of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

5 years
180 days
270 days
5 years
5 years
5 years
N/A
N/A
5 years
N/A

100%
40%
25%
30%
30%
30%
20%
20%
20%
100%

None
30%
10%
None
None
None
10%
None
None
None
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by the provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive). The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments
held by bond trustees.

Authorized
Investment Type
U.S. Treasury Obligations
Money Market Mutual Funds
Guaranteed Investment Contracts
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
Of Portfolio

Investment
in One Issuer

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

Investment in State Investment Pool
The District is a voluntary participant in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements
at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The fair value factor for LAIF is reported on
a quarterly basis. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by
LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.
Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.
Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000.
Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance.
Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF to do a verbal transaction.

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit
risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not
apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or
government investment pools (such as LAIF).
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Custodial Credit Risk, continued
The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal and policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited
by public agencies. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 held at each institution are federally insured and
the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities
are not held in the District’s name.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
As of June 30, 2019, the District’s investments are scheduled to mature as follows:

Investment Type

Total

U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
-

12 months
or less

Remaining maturity
13 to 24
months

25 to 60
months

$

1,588,048
6,620,000
17,805,234

1,192,000
17,805,234

2,225,000
-

1,588,048
3,203,000
-

$

26,013,282

18,997,234

2,225,000

4,791,048

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s investments are scheduled to mature as follows:

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Total

12 months
or less

Remaining maturity
13 to 24
months

25 to 60
months

$

1,548,032
6,876,000
19,801,200

992,000
19,801,200

1,192,000
-

1,548,032
4,692,000
-

- $

28,225,232

20,793,200

1,192,000

6,240,032

Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code (where
applicable), the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of the year ended
for each investment type.
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Credit Risk, continued
Credit ratings as of June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Total
$

1,588,048
6,620,000
17,805,234

$

26,013,282

Minimum
legal
rating

Rating as of
year-end
AAA to AA-

AAN/A
N/A
-

Exempt
from
disclosure

1,588,048
-

6,620,000
17,805,234

1,588,048

24,425,234

Credit ratings as of June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Total
$

1,548,032
6,876,000
19,801,200

$

28,225,232

Minimum
legal
rating

Rating as of
year-end
AAA to AA-

AAN/A
N/A
-

Exempt
from
disclosure

1,548,032
-

6,876,000
19,801,200

1,548,032

26,677,200

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investments in any one
issuer (other than for external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District’s investments
at June 30, 2019 and 2018.
Fair Value Measurements
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, based on their fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2019, are
as follows:

Total

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposits

$

Total investments measured at fair value
Investments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Total

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

1,588,048
6,620,000

1,588,048
-

6,620,000

-

8,208,048

1,588,048

6,620,000

-

17,805,234
$

26,013,282

-
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Fair Value Measurements, continued
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, based on their fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2018, are
as follows:

Total

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury notes
Negotiable certificates of deposits

$

Total investments measured at fair value
Investments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Total

(3)

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

1,548,032
6,876,000

1,548,032
-

6,876,000

-

8,424,032

1,548,032

6,876,000

-

19,801,200
$

-

28,225,232

Investment in Joint-Powers Authority

Jointly governed organizations are legal entities or other organizations that result from a contractual
arrangement and that are owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and
specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants retain an ongoing financial interest or
ongoing financial responsibility as permitted by the California Government Code.
As of June 30, 2019, the District’s participation in these jointly governed organization consists of the
following balance:
2018
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groudwater Agency $

227,947

Additions
833,294

Deletions
(660,317)

2019
400,924

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s participation in these jointly governed organization consists of the
following balance:
2017
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groudwater Agency $

352,071

Additions
405,010

Deletions
(529,134)

2018
227,947

The District has recorded its interest in the joint-powers authorities under the equity method of accounting
whereby, the District’s equity in the joint-powers authorities is equal to the original cost of assets
contributed plus their pro rate share of the net position of the joint-powers authorities.
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Investment in Joint-Powers Authority

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
On March 17, 2016, the District, the Central Water District, the City of Santa Cruz, and the County of Santa
Cruz (Members) entered into a joint-powers agreement to form the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater
Agency. The Agency’s purpose is to study, plan, develop, finance, acquire, construct, maintain, repair,
manage, operate, control, and govern the water supply and water management within the basin, either alone
or in cooperation with other public or private non-member entities. The Agency is governed by a 11member Board of Directors consisting of two representatives appointed by each Member and three
representatives of private well owners within the Agency’s boundaries.
The Agency is funded by assessments for contributions by the Members; whereby the contributions made
by the Members and any revenues by the Agency may be directed by the Board of Directors at such time
and upon such terms as the Board of Directors may decide; provided that (1) any distributions shall be made
in proportion to the contributions paid by each Member of the Agency, and (2) any capital contribution paid
by a Member voluntarily, and without obligation to make such capital contributions shall be returned to the
contributing Member. As a result, the District has an equity interest in the Project that is recorded as an
investment in the Agency on the District’s statements of net position under GASB Statements No. 14 and
61. Each year the District adjusts its investment in the Agency by its proportionate share (70%) of the
Agency’s net position. Audited financial statements are available from the Agency at 5180 Soquel Drive,
Soquel, California 95073, or at www.midcountygroundwater.org.

(4)

Capital Assets

Change in capital assets for 2019, was as follows:
Balance
2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Construction-in-process

$

Additions

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2019

5,383,110
8,503,733

95,920
5,077,755

(8,091,413)

5,479,030
5,490,075

Total non-depreciable assets

13,886,843

5,173,675

(8,091,413)

10,969,105

Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system
Structures and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

92,663,077
1,838,096
4,169,260

6,629,362
81,696
1,217,948

(190,004)
(233,110)

99,102,435
1,919,792
5,154,098

98,670,433

7,929,006

(423,114)

106,176,325

(44,297,629)
(939,791)
(2,997,954)

(2,063,350)
(121,157)
(286,009)

12,850
42,799

(46,348,129)
(1,060,948)
(3,241,164)

(48,235,374)

(2,470,516)

55,649

(50,650,241)

50,435,059

5,458,490

(367,465)

55,526,084

64,321,902

10,632,165

(8,458,878)

66,495,189

Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution system
Structures and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets, net

$

In fiscal year 2019, capital assets increased due primarily to additions to the District’s land, constructionin-process, transmission and distributions system, structures and improvements, and vehicle and equipment.
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Capital Assets, continued

Change in capital assets for 2018, was as follows:
Balance
2017
Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Construction-in-process

$

Additions

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2018

5,383,110
6,882,386

4,386,724

(2,765,377)

5,383,110
8,503,733

Total non-depreciable assets

12,265,496

4,386,724

(2,765,377)

13,886,843

Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system
Structures and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

90,433,795
1,821,805
4,027,326

2,295,457
16,291
141,934

(66,175)
-

92,663,077
1,838,096
4,169,260

96,282,926

2,453,682

(66,175)

98,670,433

(41,968,909)
(896,178)
(2,750,291)

(2,388,303)
(43,613)
(247,663)

59,583
-

(44,297,629)
(939,791)
(2,997,954)

(45,615,378)

(2,679,579)

59,583

(48,235,374)

50,667,548

(225,897)

(6,592)

50,435,059

(2,771,969)

64,321,902

Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution system
Structures and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets, net

$

62,933,044

4,160,827

In fiscal year 2018, capital assets increased due primarily to additions to the District’s construction-inprocess, transmission and distributions system, structures and improvements, and vehicle and equipment.

(5)

Compensated Absences

Change in compensated absences for 2019, was as follows:
Balance
2018
$

543,649

Additions
757,039

Deletions

Balance
2019

(688,782)

Current
Portion

611,906

152,977

Long-term
Portion
458,929

Change in compensated absences for 2018, was as follows:
Balance
2017
$

464,162

Additions
696,841

Deletions
(617,354)

Balance
2018

Current
Portion

543,649

135,912

Long-term
Portion
407,737

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 59 of 105

Soquel Creek Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(6)

Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt for 2019, were as follows:
Balance
2018

Additions/
Adjustments

Payments/
Adjustments

16,800,000
89,152

-

(5,022)

16,800,000
84,130

Total 2011 Certificates-of-participation

16,889,152

-

(5,022)

16,884,130

2013 Certificates-of participation
Premium on certificates-of-participation

15,715,000
516,544

-

(980,000)
(20,871)

14,735,000
495,673

Total 2013 certificates-of-participation

16,231,544

-

(1,000,871)

15,230,673

Total certificates-of-participation

33,120,696

-

(1,005,893)

32,114,803

Total long term debt
Less: current portion

33,120,696
(980,000)

32,114,803
(1,065,000)

32,140,696

31,049,803

Long-term debt:
Certificates-of-participation
2011 Certificates-of participation
$
Premium on certificates-of-participation

Non-current portion

$

Balance
2019

Changes in long-term debt for 2018, were as follows:
Balance
2017

Balance
2018

Additions/
Adjustments

Payments/
Adjustments

623,392
(2,364)

-

(623,392)
2,364

-

621,028

-

(621,028)

-

Certificates-of-participation
2011 Certificates-of participation
Premium on certificates-of-participation

16,800,000
94,174

-

(5,022)

16,800,000
89,152

Total 2011 Certificates-of-participation

16,894,174

-

(5,022)

16,889,152

2013 Certificates-of participation
Premium on certificates-of-participation

16,095,000
537,415

-

(380,000)
(20,871)

15,715,000
516,544

Total 2013 certificates-of-participation

16,632,415

-

(400,871)

16,231,544

Total certificates-of-participation

33,526,589

-

(405,893)

33,120,696

Total long term debt
Less: current portion

34,147,617
(1,001,028)

33,120,696
(980,000)

33,146,589

32,140,696

Long-term debt:
Bonds
2012 Revenue refunding bond
Discount on bond payable

$

Total bonds

Non-current portion

$
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Long-Term Debt, continued

2011 Certificates-of-Participation
In June 2011, the District authorized the issuance of $16,800,000 in 2011 Certificates-of-Participation for
the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring and constructing various improvements to the District’s water
transmission and distribution system. The certificates-of-participation bear interest at rates from 4.00% to
5.00%. Interest is payable on September 1st and March 1st, with principal due on March 1st starting in fiscal
year 2020.
Future debt service payments through maturity in 2036, are as follows:

Year

Principal

Total

695,000
720,000
750,000
780,000
810,000
4,590,000
5,740,000
2,715,000

766,625
738,825
710,025
680,025
648,825
2,709,880
1,555,820
205,250

1,461,625
1,458,825
1,460,025
1,460,025
1,458,825
7,299,880
7,295,820
2,920,250

16,800,000

8,015,275

24,815,275

Current

(695,000)

-

Premium

84,130

-

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2036

$

Interest

Total

Long-term

$

16,189,130

2013 Certificates-of-Participation
On July 16, 2013, the District issued $17,520,000 of 30-year certificates-of-participation with a maturity
date of March 1, 2043. The certificates-of-participation were issued with a premium of $619,158, which
will be amortized over the remaining life of the debt service. Interest on the certificates-of-participation
range from 3.00% to 5.00% over the term of the debt with debt service payments occurring on September
1, and March 1, of each fiscal year. Proceeds of the certificates-of-participation will be used to help finance
certain capital improvements to the District’s water system and pay the costs of debt issuance.
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Long-Term Debt, continued

2013 Certificates-of-Participation, continued
Future debt service payments through maturity in 2043, are as follows:

Year

Principal

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2043

Interest

Total

370,000
385,000
400,000
415,000
435,000
2,430,000
2,965,000
3,680,000
3,655,000

658,406
643,606
628,206
612,206
595,606
2,704,231
2,171,594
1,461,950
467,750

1,028,406
1,028,606
1,028,206
1,027,206
1,030,606
5,134,231
5,136,594
5,141,950
4,122,750

14,735,000

9,943,555

24,678,555

Current

(370,000)

-

Premium

495,673

-

Total

Long-term

$

$

14,860,673

2012 Revenue Refunding Bond
In June 2012, the District authorized and issued $3,625,000 in 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds at an interest
rate of 1.25% to defease the District’s 2004 Revenue Refunding Bonds. The 2012 Revenue Refunding Bond
was paid in full as of June 30, 2018.

(7)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency CostSharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan (Plan or PERF C) administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of a miscellaneous risk pool and a safety risk
pool, which are comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety plans, respectively. Benefit
provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and the District’s resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions, and membership information that can be found on CalPERS website or may be obtained from
their executive office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.
Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the
1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for
each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Benefits Provided, continued
On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform
Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed the
District’s CalPERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants, not previously
employed by an agency under CalPERS, effective December 31, 2012. All employees hired after January
1, 2013 are eligible for the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 62 Retirement Plan under PEPRA.
The District participates in the Plan’s miscellaneous risk pool. The provisions and benefits for the Plan’s
miscellaneous pool in effect at June 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as follows:
2019
Classic

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

2018
PEPRA

Classic

Prior to
December 18,
2005

New Classic
On or after
December 18,
2005 up to
December 31,
2012

Prior to
December 18,
2005

New Classic
On or after
December 18,
2005 up to
December 31,
2012

On or after
January 1,
2013

On or after
January 1, 2013

2.5% @ 55
5 service years
monthly for life
50 - 55

2.5% @ 55
5 service years
monthly for life
50 - 55

2% @ 62
5 service years
monthly for life
52 - 67

2.5% @ 55
5 service years
monthly for life
50 - 55

2.5% @ 55
5 service years
monthly for life
50 - 55

2% @ 62
5 service years
monthly for life
52 - 67

1.5% to 2.4%
7.95%
10.37%

1.0% to 2.5%
7.95%
9.54%

1.0% to 2.5%
6.25%
6.84%

1.5% to 2.4%
8.00%
9.88%

1.0% to 2.5%
8.00%
9.54%

1.0% to 2.5%
6.25%
6.53%

PEPRA

Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on July 1, following notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30, by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense
for the Plan were as follows:

2019
Contributions – employer

$

642,107

2018
320,536
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Net Pension Liability
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

Net pension liability

$

2019

2018

7,135,537

7,831,149

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the miscellaneous risk pool. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the net pension liability of the Plan
is measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 (the measurement dates), respectively. The total pension liability
for the Plan’s miscellaneous risk pool used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (the valuation dates), rolled forward to June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively, using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
The District’s changes in proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan’s miscellaneous risk
pool as of the measurement dates June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Proportionate
Share
Proportion – June 30, 2016
Changes in proportion
Proportion – June 30, 2017
Changes in proportion
Proportion – June 30, 2018

0.078101 %
0.000864
0.078965
(0.004916)
0.074049 %
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Outflows(Inflows) of Resources, continued
For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized pension expense $1,015,051 and
$171,209, respectively.
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
2019

2018

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

1,351,925

-

1,234,006

-

Differences between actual and
expected experience

180,613

-

-

Changes in assumptions

614,106

-

1,179,371

-

35,275

-

288,742

-

Description
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date

$

Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Adjustment due to changes in proportions
and difference in employer contribution
Total

$

(137,131)

-

(311,205)

-

(335,536)

2,181,919

(311,205)

2,702,119

(472,667)

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported $1,351,925 and $1,234,006, respectively, as deferred
outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement dates. Pension contributions
subsequent to the measurement date for the year ended June 30, 2019, will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2020. Pension contributions subsequent to the
measurement date for the year ended June 30, 2018, was recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability for the year ended June 30, 2019.
As of June 30, 2019, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows/
(Inflows) of
Resources

Fiscal Year
Ending June
30:
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

451,157
358,355
(226,542)
(64,181)

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 65 of 105

Soquel Creek Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(7)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2017 and 2016, actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation Dates

2019: June 30, 2017
2018: June 30, 2016

Measurement Dates

2019: June 30, 2018
2018: June 30, 2017

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate

7.15%

Inflation

2019: 2.50%
2018: 2.75%

Salary increases

Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality rate table*

Derived using CalPERS membership data

Period upon which actuarial
experience survey assumptions
were based

2019: 1997-2015
2018: 1997-2011

Post-retirement benefit increase

2019: Contract COLA up to 2.50% until PPPA floor on
purchasing power applies; 2.55% thereafter.
2018: Contract COLA up to 2.75% until PPPA floor on
purchasing power applies; 2.75% thereafter.

* In 2019, the mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP 2016. For more details
on this table, please refer to the December 2017, experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic
data from 1997 to 2015) available online on the CalPERS website.
In 2018, the mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please
refer to the April 2014 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2011)
available online on the CalPERS website.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 2018, for the PERF C was 7.15%
This discount rate is not adjusted for administrative expenses.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Discount Rate, continued
The PERF C fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return for those pension plans'
investments were applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and longterm market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short
term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.
The table below reflects long-term expected real rates of return by asset class. The rates of return were
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity
Total

Strategic

2019
Real Return

Real Return

Strategic

2018
Real Return

Real Return

Allocation

Years 1-10*

Year 11+**

Allocation

Years 1-10*

Year 11+**

50.00 %
28.00
8.00
13.00
1.00
100.00 %

4.80 %
1.00
0.77
6.30
3.75
-

5.38 %
2.62
1.81
7.23
4.93
(0.92)

47.00 %
19.00
6.00
12.00
11.00
3.00
2.00

4.90 %
19.00
6.00
12.00
11.00
3.00
2.00

0.54 %
2.27
1.39
6.63
5.21
5.36
(0.90)

100.00 %

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage point lower or
one-percentage point higher than the current rate.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

As of June 30, 2019, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Discount
Rate - 1%
6.15%
Net pension liability

$

11,411,472

Current
Discount
Rate
7.15%
7,135,537

Discount
Rate + 1%
8.15%
3,605,821

As of June 30, 2018, the District’s net pension liability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher, are as
follows:

Discount
Rate - 1%
6.15%
Net pension liability

$

12,039,590

Current
Discount
Rate
7.15%
7,831,149

Discount
Rate + 1%
8.15%
4,345,642

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in separately issued
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 81 through 86 for the Required Supplementary Information.

(8)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description
The District’s defined benefit Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan (Plan) provides OPEB for all
permanent and vested full-time employees. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan
administered by the District. The District’s Board has the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms
and financing requirements of the Plan. The District sponsors healthcare coverage through the CalPERS
Health Program, under the California Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMCHA),
commonly referred to as PERS Health. PEMCHA provides health insurance through a variety of Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO) and Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) options. The District has set
aside funds to cover retiree health liabilities in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.
Benefits Provided
The District offers active employees a choice of medical (including prescription drug coverage) plans
through the CalPERS Health Program under the PEMCHA. The maximum monthly District contribution,
including the PERS required minimum, will equal 90% of the maximum premium for the Bay Area Region
Blue Shield HMO or the PERS Choice Blue Cross PPO. Employees enrolled in other plans will be required
to pay any applicable additional cost. In no event will an employee be credited with the excess District
contribution based on the plan chosen.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Benefits Provided, continued
The District offers the same medical plans to eligible retirees except once a retiree is eligible for Medicare,
the retiree must join a Medicare HMO or Supplement Plan with Medicare being the primary payer. In
general, employees retiring from the District and CalPERS may continue coverage through PEMCHA.
Eligibility for a District contribution at retirement (other than the CalPERS minimum required contribution)
varies based on date of hire.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

2019
Active employees
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefit payments
Inactive plan members entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits
Total plan membership

2018
44

44

32

32

4

4

80

80

Contribution
The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by
the District’s Board of Directors through collective bargaining. The obligation of the District to contribute
to the plan is based on an actuarially determined rate. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
the District’s expected contribution rates were 19.64% and 15.7%, respectively, of covered-employee
payroll. Employees pay the difference between the benefit they receive and the monthly premium.
Actuarial Assumptions
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all period included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Inflation

2.8% per annum

Salary increases

3.0% per annum, in aggregate

Investment rate of return

7.0% per annum; assumes the District invests in the CERBT asset
allocation Strategy 1 with a margin for adverse deviation of 28 bps

Healthcare cost trend rates

7.0% and 6.5% for HMO and PPO, respectively as of June 30, 2018,
decreasing 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for both HMO
and PPO as of June 30, 2022 and later years.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Actuarial Assumptions, continued
Mortality rates were based on the pre-retirement mortality and post-retirement mortality rates under the
most recent CalPERS Pension plan valuation. Sample deaths per 1,000 employees applicable to the
Miscellaneous employees are as follows:
Age
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60

Pre-retirement Mortality
Males
Females
0.4
0.2
0.5
0.3
0.6
0.4
0.8
0.5
1.1
0.7
1.6
1.0
2.3
1.4
3.1
1.8

Post-retirement Mortality
Age
Males
Females
55
6.0
4.2
60
7.1
4.4
65
8.3
5.9
70
13.1
9.9
75
22.1
17.2
80
39.0
29.0
85
69.7
52.4
90
129.7
98.9

Retirement age is in accordance to the retirement rates under the most recent CalPERS pension plan
valuation. The retirement tables are as follows:
•
•

Miscellaneous Tier 1: 2.5% @55
Miscellaneous Tier 2: 2.0% @62

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan's target asset allocation as of measurement
dates June 30, 2018 and 2017, are summarized in the following table:
2019

Asset Class
Global equity
Global fixed income
Inflation assets
REITs
Commodities
Total

Target
Allocation
57 %
27
5
8
3
100 %

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
6 %
2
1
5
1

2018
Target
Allocation
57 %
27
5
8
3

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
6 %
2
2
4
2

100 %
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Discount Rate
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the District contributions will be made
at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
As of June 30, 2019, changes in net OPEB liability were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)
Plan
Fiduciary
Net OPEB
Total OPEB
Net Position Liability/(Asset
Liability (a)
(b)
(c) = (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2018

$

Changes during the year:
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and
actual experience
Net investment income
Contributions - employer
Benefit payments
Administrative and other expenses
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2019

$

6,054,124

2,031,940

4,022,184

126,813
419,147

-

126,813
419,147

(386,243)
-

168,806
767,917
(386,243)
(3,866)

(168,806)
(767,917)
3,866

159,717

546,614

(386,897)

6,213,841

2,578,554

3,635,287
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability, continued
As of June 30, 2018, changes in net OPEB liability were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)
Plan
Fiduciary
Net OPEB
Total OPEB
Net Position Liability/(Asset
Liability (a)
(b)
(c) = (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2017

$

Changes during the year:
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and
actual experience
Net investment income
Contributions - employer
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018

$

6,031,612

1,651,418

4,380,194

118,517
416,246

-

118,517
416,246

(104,740)
(407,511)
-

183,885
614,194
(407,511)
(10,046)

(104,740)
(183,885)
(614,194)
10,046

22,512

380,522

(358,010)

6,054,124

2,031,940

4,022,184

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
As of June 30, 2019, the following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Discount
Rate - 1%
6.00%
Net OPEB Liability

$

4,396,545

Current
Discount
Rate
7.00%
3,635,287

Discount
Rate + 1%
8.00%
3,003,152
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, continued
As of June 30, 2018, the following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Discount
Rate - 1%
6.00%
Net OPEB Liability

$

4,765,668

Current
Discount
Rate
7.00%

Discount
Rate + 1%
8.00%

4,022,184

3,405,510

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
As of June 30, 2019, the following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Net OPEB Liability

$

1% Decrease

Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rates

1% Increase

(5.50% HMO/
6.00% PPO
decreasing to
4.00% HMO/
4.00% PPO)

(6.50% HMO/
7.00% PPO
decreasing to
5.00% HMO/
5.00% PPO)

(7.50% HMO/
8.00% PPO
decreasing to
6.00% HMO/
6.00% PPO)

2,936,787

3,635,287

4,483,053

As of June 30, 2019, the following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the
District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Net OPEB Liability

$

1% Decrease

Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rates

1% Increase

(5.50% HMO/
6.00% PPO
decreasing to
4.00% HMO/
4.00% PPO)

(6.50% HMO/
7.00% PPO
decreasing to
5.00% HMO/
5.00% PPO)

(7.50% HMO/
8.00% PPO
decreasing to
6.00% HMO/
6.00% PPO)

3,623,806

4,022,184

5,224,685
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(8)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), continued

Deferred OPEB Outflows (Inflows) of Resources
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $370,051 and
$391,884, respectively. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
2019
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

Description
OPEB contributions subsequent to
measurement date

$

781,944

-

2018
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources
702,540

-

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments

-

(13,950)

1,266

Difference between expected and actual
experience

-

(52,370)

-

(78,555)

781,944

(66,320)

703,806

(78,555)

Total

$

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net Deferred
Outflows/
(Inflows) of
Resources

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

(24,316)
(24,318)
(15,015)
(2,671)

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
See pages 81 and 86 for the Required Supplementary Information.

(9)

Prior Period Adjustment

Joint-powers Authority
In fiscal year 2019, the District’s net position has been restated to include the balance and activities of its
investment in the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency. The effects of the restatement is as
follows:

Net Position
Net position at June 30, 2017, as previously stated

$

Effects of investment in joint-powers authority
Net position at July 1, 2017, as restated

47,541,653
352,071

$

47,893,724
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(10) Net Position
Calculation of net position as of June 30, was as follows:

2019
Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets – not being depreciated
Capital assets, net – being depreciated
Current:
Certificates-of-participation
Non-current:
Certificates-of-participation

$

10,969,105
55,526,084

2018
13,886,843
50,435,059

(1,065,000)

(980,000)

(31,049,803)

(32,140,696)

34,380,386

31,201,206

6,431,407
58,226

6,905,756
21,897

6,489,633

6,927,653

2,808,175
1,588,048

2,605,592
1,548,032

Total restricted for debt services

4,396,223

4,153,624

Total restricted net position

10,885,856

11,081,277

626,040
155,948

377,286
173,755

2,000,000
1,887,640
4,580,148
1,074,998

2,000,000
3,484,000
1,201,556
2,889,903

9,542,786

9,575,459

54,809,028

51,857,942

Total net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects:
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Accrued interest receivable – restricted
Total restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt services:
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Investments – restricted

Unrestricted net position:
Non-spendable net position:
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits
Spendable net position are designated as follows:
Rate stabilization reserve
Operating contingency reserve
Capital facilities reserve
General reserve
Total unrestricted net position
Total net position

$
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(11) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan
For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program
(Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that elect
to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their salary
until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or otherwise made
available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for income tax
purposes.
Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are not
the legal property of the District and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. Market
value of all plan assets held in trust at June 30, 2019 and 2018, were $3,395,751 and $3,235,139,
respectively.
The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statements of net position.

(12) Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA), an
intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance programs for
California water agencies. The purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of selfinsured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage.
At June 30, 2019, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the ACWA/JPIA as
follows:
•

General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk
financing self-insurance limits of $1,000,000, combined single limit at $1,000,000 per occurrence.
The JPIA purchases additional excess coverage layers: $60 million per occurrence for general, auto
and public officials liability, which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted above.
JPIA also purchased Cyber Liability coverage, which is $2,000,000 per occurrence, which protects
members from a variety of exposures, such as network security liability, privacy liability,
regulatory, media liability, network business interruption, digital asset protection, cyber extortion
and privacy event expenses.

•

Employee dishonesty coverage up to $100,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and theft and computer fraud.

•

Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file if replaced within two years after
the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $500 million per
occurrence, subject to a $25,000 deductible per occurrence.

•

Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $50 million per occurrence, subject
to various deductibles depending on the type of equipment.

•

Workers’ compensation insurance up to California statutory limits for all work-related
injuries/illnesses covered by California law. The ACWA/JPIA is self-insured up to $2,000,000 and
excess insurance coverage has been purchased.
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(12) Risk Management, continued
Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there
were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the year ended June 30, 2019.
Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2019,
2018, and 2017.

(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to the
report date, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement
is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.
This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87
In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 – Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Earlier application is encouraged.
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(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89
In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance
with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are
superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported
in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.
This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90
In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 – Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and
comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to
improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority
equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be
reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an
investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using
the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a
fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.
For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component unit.
This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest
account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at
acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit.
Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only
transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.
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(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90, continued
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be applied
on a prospective basis.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91
In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by
clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is
not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.
This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds
of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities. Payments from
third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During those
arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the obligors
at the end of the arrangements.
This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the
amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.
Earlier application is encouraged.

(14) Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Contracts
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement, or
modification of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The financing of such
construction contracts is being provided primarily from the District’s replacement reserves, capital
contributions, and debt financing.
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(14) Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Litigation
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes that the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial conditions.

(15) Subsequent Events
Events occurring after June 30, 2019, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of December 17, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.
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Schedules of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Description

6/30/2018

District's proportion of the net pension
liability

Measurement Dates
6/30/2017
6/30/2016
6/30/2015

6/30/2014

0.074049%

0.078960%

0.078100%

0.086780%

0.070530%

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

$

7,135,537

7,831,149

6,758,135

5,956,316

4,388,410

District's covered payroll

$

4,260,814

3,701,172

3,624,349

3,499,959

2,961,189

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a Percentage of its
covered payroll

167.47%

211.59%

186.46%

170.18%

148.20%

Plan's fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

75.26%

74.41%

75.48%

77.56%

83.03%

Notes:
Changes in Benefit Terms – Public agencies can make changes to their plan provisions, and such changes
occur on an ongoing basis. A summary of the plan provisions that were used for a specific plan can be
found in the plan’s annual valuation report.
Changes of Assumptions – In December 2017, the CalPERS Board adopted new mortality assumptions for
plans participating in the PERF. The new mortality table was developed from the December 2017
experience study and includes 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90% of scale
MP 2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. The inflation assumption is reduced from 2.75% to 2.50%.
The assumptions for individual salary increases and overall payroll growth are reduced from 3.00% to
2.75%. These changes will be implemented in two steps commencing in the June 30, 2017 funding
valuation. However, for financial reporting purposes, these assumption changes are fully reflected in the
results for fiscal year 2018.
In fiscal year 2017, the financial reporting discount rate for the PERF C was lowered from 7.65% to 7.15%.
In December 2016, the CalPERS Board approved lowering the funding discount rate used in the PERF C
from 7.50% to 7.00%, which is to be phased in over a three-year period (7.50% to7.375%, 7.375% to 7.25%,
and 7.25% to 7.00%) beginning with the June 30, 2016, valuation reports. The funding discount rate
includes a 15 basis-point reduction for administrative expenses, and the remaining decrease is consistent
with the change in the financial reporting discount rate.
In fiscal year 2015, the financial reporting discount rate was increased from 7.50% to 7.65% resulting from
eliminating the 15 basis-point reduction for administrative expenses. The funding discount rate remained
at 7.50% during this period and remained adjusted for administrative expenses.
* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10year trend is compiled.
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Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions
As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Description

6/30/2019

$
Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contributions in relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

District's Covered Payroll

$

Contribution's as a percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

842,330

6/30/2018
710,708

(1,351,951)

(1,234,006)

(509,621)

(523,298)

Fiscal Years Ended
6/30/2017
6/30/2016

6/30/2015

673,486

572,347

479,107

(642,107)

(320,536)

(491,580)

31,379

251,811

(12,473)

4,260,814

3,938,155

3,701,172

3,624,349

3,499,959

31.73%

31.33%

17.35%

8.84%

14.05%

Note:
* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10year trend is compiled.

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 84 of 105

Soquel Creek Water District

Schedules of the District's Changes in Net OPEB Liability
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Defined Benefit OPEB Plan
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and experience
Benefit payments

$

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year
Total OPEB liability, end of year (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense

$

$

2019

2018

126,813
419,147
(386,243)

118,517
416,246
(104,740)
(407,511)

159,717

22,512

6,054,124

6,031,612

6,213,841

6,054,124

767,917
168,806
(386,243)
(3,866)

614,194
183,885
(407,511)
(10,046)

546,614

380,522

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year

2,031,940

1,651,418

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year (b)

2,578,554

2,031,940

3,635,287

4,022,184

41.50%

33.56%

3,909,000

3,909,000

93.00%

102.90%

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Net OPEB liability, ending (a) - (b)

$

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability
Covered - employee payroll

$

Net OPEB Liability as a percentage of coveredemployee payroll

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit changes – None noted.
Changes of assumptions – None noted.
* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10year trend is compiled.
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Schedules of the District's OPEB Contributions
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Defined Benefit OPEB Plan
2019
Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

$

Contribution deficiency(excess)

$

District's covered-employee payroll

$

Contribution's as a percentage of coveredemployee payroll

2018

2017

577,434

523,697

511,301

(767,917)

(614,194)

(511,301)

(190,483)

(90,497)

-

3,909,000

3,909,000

3,799,000

19.64%

15.71%

13.46%

Notes to Schedule
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal (EAN) cost method

Amortization method

To the extent that the actuarial determined
contribution is greater than the direct contribution
for retireepayments in a given fiscal period

Amortization period

Over a period of time established by the District

Asset valuation method

Market value basis

Inflation

2.8% per annum

Healthcare cost trend rates

6.5% per annum

Salary increase

3.0% per annum, in aggregate

Investment rate of return

7.0% per year; assumes the District invests in the
CERBT asset allocation Strategy 1 with a margin
for adverse deviation of 28 bps

Retirement age

According to the retirement rates under the most
recent CalPERS pension plan valuation According
to the following retirement tables:
● Miscellaneous Tier 1: 2.5% @55
● Miscellaneous Tier 2: 2.0% @62

Mortality rate**

Derived using CalPERS membership data

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10year trend is compiled.
** The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP 2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the December 2017, experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data
from 1997 to 2015) available online on the CalPERS website.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors
Soquel Creek Water District
Soquel, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Soquel Creek Water
District (District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprises the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 17, 2019.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, (continued)
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 17, 2019

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 90 of 105

Statistical
Section
This section of the Soquel Creek Water District's
comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the government's overall
financial health.
Financial Trends - pages 93 - 95
These schedules contain trend information to help
the reader understand how the District's financial
performance and well-being have changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity - pages 96-99
These schedules contain information to help the
reader assess the District's ability to generate water
revenues, the most significant source of revenue to
the District.

Debt Capacity - pages 100-101
These schedules present information to help the
reader assess the affordability of the District's
current levels of outstanding debt, and the District's
ability to manage debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information - pages
102-103
These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District's financial
activities take place.
Operating Information - pages 104-105
These schedules contain service and infrastructure
data to help the reader understand how the
information in the District's financial report relates
to the services the District provides and the activities
it performs.
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Schedule 1
Soquel Creek Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Year
2010
Changes in net position:
Operating revenues (see Schedule 2)
Operating expenses (see Schedule 3)
Depreciation and amortization

$

Operating income (loss)

10,367,214
(7,475,369)
(1,892,844)
999,001

Non‐operating revenues (expenses)
Rental income
Grant revenue
Investment income/(loss)
Amortization of deferred charges
Gain/(Loss) on sale/disposition of assets
Interest expense
Changes in investment in joint‐powers authority
Other revenue/(expense), net

16,800
210,766
39,206
(65,172)
(39,678)
(208,677)
‐
26,941

Total non‐operating revenues (expenses), net

(19,814)

Total net position

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

11,157,065
(7,104,015)
(1,962,041)

12,000,019
(7,360,454)
(1,957,121)

13,332,434
(8,228,355)
(2,288,498)

15,566,481
(8,003,864)
(2,021,326)

14,054,083
(9,174,688)
(2,209,442)

15,678,414
(11,278,048)
(2,342,900)

16,078,843
(11,112,813)
(2,592,842)

18,691,864
(12,165,140)
(2,679,579)

18,563,912
(13,904,482)
(2,470,516)

2,091,009

2,682,444

2,815,581

5,541,291

2,669,953

2,057,466

2,373,188

3,847,145

2,188,914

16,800
86,987
52,324
(29,093)
(66,748)
(292,063)
‐
56,227
(175,566)

16,800
‐
99,477
(76,675)
‐
(938,871)
‐
(2,552)

18,000
‐
56,181
(787,306)
‐
(348,584)
‐
(6,217)

10,850
‐
110,549
‐
‐
(1,259,573)
‐
(4,965,014)

(901,821)

(1,067,926)

200
‐
91,116
‐
‐
(20,851)
‐
(4,209)

‐
‐
121,374
‐
‐
(666,906)
‐
(31,190)

(586,930)

1,455
‐
366,849
‐
(6,592)
(755,423)
(529,134)
‐
(922,845)

‐
‐
580,236
‐
3,449
(700,716)
(660,317)
‐

(6,103,188)

66,256

1,747,655

(561,897)

2,736,209

1,480,744

1,786,258

2,924,300

1,411,566

112,437

161,997

2,080,943

1,913,780

858,977

564,649

321,050

989,082

1,039,918

1,572,580

$

1,091,624

2,077,440

3,861,566

3,661,435

297,080

3,300,858

1,801,794

2,775,340

3,964,218

2,984,146

$

37,435,742
864,018
4,888,782

36,998,696
2,272,190
5,995,096

36,822,032
2,035,390
8,542,906

37,204,909
2,723,613
11,133,241

15,607,607
22,395,087
13,356,149

24,304,623
16,421,327
8,518,176

26,977,479
14,218,787
9,849,654

28,798,189
11,774,100
6,969,364

31,201,206
11,081,277
9,575,459

34,413,446
10,885,856
9,542,786

$

43,188,542

45,265,982

47,400,328

51,061,763

51,358,843

49,244,126

51,045,920

54,842,088

$

(576,722)

11,200
‐
191,074
‐
(1,626)
(782,308)
‐
(5,270)

1,780,623

Beginning net position ‐ as stated
Prior Period Adjustment
Beginning net position ‐ as restated

2013

1,915,443

Capital contributions

Net position by component:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted(1)
Unrestricted

2012

979,187

Net income (loss) before capital contributions

Changes in net position

2011

47,541,653

51,857,942

45,265,982
(1,727,220)

51,358,843
(5,415,575)

51,045,920
(6,279,607)

47,541,653
352,071

43,538,762

45,943,268

44,766,313

47,893,724

(777,348)

(1) Certificates of Participation included in restricted net position beginning in fiscal year 2015.

Changes in Total Net Position

Total Net Position Allocation by Component
$60,000,000

$4,500,000

$50,000,000

$3,500,000
$40,000,000

$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000

Net Position

Change in Net Position

$4,000,000

$30,000,000
$20,000,000
$10,000,000

$500,000
$0

$0

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 2
Soquel Creek Water District
Operating Revenue By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Water Sales
Consumption

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Water Service
Charges

7,099,265
7,519,608
8,153,877
9,189,791
9,889,900
9,297,943
10,059,054
9,953,612
11,916,294
11,366,972

3,042,315
3,273,879
3,642,105
3,874,698
4,592,785
4,736,132
5,182,724
6,035,938
6,693,811
7,081,809

Water Demand
Offset Credits (1)

Other Charges

47,376
157,770
149,172
188,642
261,573
‐
369,691
‐
‐
‐

178,258
205,808
54,865
79,303
57,080
20,008
66,945
89,293
81,759
115,131

Total Operating
Revenue
10,367,214
11,157,065
12,000,019
13,332,434
14,801,338
14,054,083
15,678,414
16,078,843
18,691,864
18,563,912

(1) The District changed the way Water Demand Offset Credits were accounted for in 2017. The credits are held as a liability until
they are used toward a water demand offset project, at which point they become revenue to the District.

Operating Revenue by Source
$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000

Revenue

$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$0

Water Sales Consumption

Water Service Charges

Water Demand Offset Credits (1)

Other Charges

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 3
Soquel Creek Water District
Operating Expenses by Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Source of
Supply

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Treatment,
Transmission and
Distribution

Pumping

274,863
780,613
450,014
468,791
448,781
694,284
1,616,988
2,155,353
2,344,975
4,293,876

739,099
783,275
737,635
850,285
811,032
828,582
842,926
900,209
944,174
1,099,645

1,777,944
1,417,688
1,906,232
2,289,505
1,521,043
1,688,776
1,852,771
2,244,465
2,379,156
2,036,528

Customer
Service
533,707
549,126
550,135
634,600
783,711
906,920
803,829
810,623
906,794
1,053,216

General and
Administrative
4,149,756
3,573,313
3,716,438
3,985,174
4,439,297
5,156,795
6,161,534
5,002,163
5,590,041
5,421,217

Total Operating
Expenses
7,475,369
7,104,015
7,360,454
8,228,355
8,003,864
9,275,357
11,278,048
11,112,813
12,165,140
13,904,482

Operating Expenses by Activity
$14,000,000
$13,000,000
$12,000,000
$11,000,000
$10,000,000
(1)

Expenses

$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$0

Source of Supply

Pumping

Transmission and Distribution

Customer Service

General and Administrative

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 4
Soquel Creek Water District
Revenue Base
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal
Year

Water Sales
(Acre Feet) (1)

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Water Produced
(Acre Feet)

3,854
3,773
3,710
3,869
3,866
3,135
2,794
2,792
3,032
2,947

4,101
4,110
4,112
4,243
4,005
3,238
3,036
3,119
3,348
3,230

See Schedule 2 "Operating Revenue by Source" for information regarding water revenues.
(1) Water sales are based on metered deliveries, which may vary slightly from actual billed consumption.

Water Consumption by Fiscal Year
4,500
4,000
3,500
Acre feet

3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
0

Water Sold

Water Produced

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department

Soquel Creek Water District | 2019 CAFR | Page 96 of 105

Schedule 5
Soquel Creek Water District
Schedule of Water Rates and Charges(1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(2)

Water Consumption Rates (per HCF)
Fiscal Year
2010
Single Family Residential ‐ Tier 1
Single Family Residential ‐ Tier 2
Single Family Residential ‐ Tier 3
Single Family Residential ‐ Tier 4
Multi Family Residential ‐ Tier 1
Multi Family Residential ‐ Tier 2
Multi Family Residential ‐ Tier 3
Multi Family Residential ‐ Tier 4
Commercial & Irrigation/Outdoor Use
Private Fire Service

$

2.85
5.43
9.41
n/a
4.48
n/a
n/a
n/a
4.48
2.85

2011
3.22
6.15
10.65
n/a
5.07
n/a
n/a
n/a
5.07
3.22

2012
3.51
6.70
11.61
n/a
5.53
n/a
n/a
n/a
5.53
3.51

2013

2014

3.60
5.80
8.50
13.00
5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00
5.94
3.60

2015

3.80
6.40
9.75
14.50
5.30
6.55
7.80
9.10
6.47
3.80

3

4.00
7.00
11.00
16.00
5.60
7.10
8.60
10.20
7.05
4.00

2016

3

5.27
7.00
14.83
25.26
5.27
7.00
14.83
25.26
7.95
n/a

2017

3

5.90
7.84
16.61
28.29
5.90
7.84
16.61
28.29
8.90
n/a

2018

3

6.61
8.78
18.60
31.68
6.61
8.78
18.60
31.68
9.97
n/a

2019

4

6.43
29.19
n/a
n/a
6.43
29.19
n/a
n/a
10.79
n/a

(2)

Fixed Service Charge
Meter Size
Single Family Residential Customers
5/8" Restricted
5/8"
3/4"
1"
1 1/2"
Multi Family Residential Customers
5/8" Restricted
5/8"
3/4"
1"
1 1/2"
2"
3"
4"
6"
8"
Commercial Customers
5/8" Restricted
5/8"
3/4"
1"
1 1/2"
2"
3"
4"
6"
8"
Irrigation/Outdoor Use Customers
5/8" Restricted
5/8"
3/4"
1"
1 1/2"
2"
3"
4"
6"
8"
Private Fire Service
1"
1 1/2"
2"
2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"
8"

2010
$

2011

Fiscal Year
2012
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

24.15
32.55
38.85
57.75

27.33
36.83
43.96
65.35

29.79
40.14
47.92
71.23

43.40
43.40
43.40
43.40

23.21
23.21
23.21
23.21

24.83
24.83
24.83
24.83

13.13
26.27
26.27
26.27
26.27

14.71
29.42
29.42
29.42
29.42

16.47
32.95
32.95
32.95
32.95

21.54
37.06
37.06
83.60
161.17

24.15
32.55
38.85
57.75
99.86
152.36
352.17
541.38
1,067.12
n/a

27.33
36.83
43.96
65.35
112.99
172.39
398.49
612.58
1,207.47
n/a

29.79
40.14
47.92
71.23
123.16
187.91
434.35
667.71
1,316.14
n/a

43.40
43.40
56.24
87.51
161.11
251.18
530.08
842.96
1,672.02
n/a

23.21
23.21
32.45
52.42
101.12
160.04
315.88
515.64
1,027.56
n/a

24.83
24.83
37.24
62.07
124.15
198.64
372.45
620.75
1,241.50
n/a

8.88
17.76
26.63
44.39
79.90
155.36
292.97
390.63
1,065.36
1,420.48

9.94
19.89
29.83
49.72
89.49
174.01
328.13
437.51
1,193.20
1,590.94

11.14
22.27
33.41
55.68
100.23
194.89
367.51
490.01
1,336.39
1,781.85

21.54
37.06
37.06
83.60
161.17
393.88
781.72
1,557.42
2,488.25
4,349.92

24.15
32.55
38.85
57.75
99.86
152.36
352.17
541.38
1,067.12
n/a

27.33
36.83
43.96
65.35
112.99
172.39
398.49
612.58
1,207.47
n/a

29.79
40.14
47.92
71.23
123.16
187.91
434.35
667.71
1,316.14
n/a

43.40
43.40
56.24
87.51
161.11
251.18
530.08
842.96
1,672.02
n/a

23.21
23.21
32.45
52.42
101.12
160.04
315.88
515.64
1,027.56
n/a

24.83
24.83
37.24
62.07
124.15
198.64
372.45
620.75
1,241.50
n/a

15.12
30.25
45.37
75.61
136.11
264.65
499.05
665.41
1,814.74
2,419.66

16.94
33.88
50.81
84.69
152.44
296.41
558.94
745.25
2,032.51
2,710.02

18.97
37.94
56.91
94.85
170.73
331.98
626.01
834.68
2,276.41
3,035.22

21.54
37.06
37.06
83.60
161.17
393.88
781.72
1,557.42
2,488.25
4,349.92

24.15
32.55
38.85
57.75
99.86
152.36
352.17
541.38
1,067.12
n/a

27.33
36.83
43.96
65.35
112.99
172.39
398.49
612.58
1,207.47
n/a

29.79
40.14
47.92
71.23
123.16
187.91
434.35
667.71
1,316.14
n/a

43.40
43.40
56.24
87.51
161.11
251.18
530.08
842.96
1,672.02
n/a

23.21
23.21
32.45
52.42
101.12
160.04
315.88
515.64
1,027.56
n/a

24.83
24.83
37.24
62.07
124.15
198.64
372.45
620.75
1,241.50
n/a

23.99
47.99
71.98
119.97
215.95
419.90
791.82
1,055.75
2,879.33
3,839.11

26.87
53.75
80.62
134.37
241.86
470.29
886.83
1,182.44
3,224.85
4,299.80

30.10
60.20
90.30
150.49
270.89
526.73
993.25
1,324.34
3,611.83
4,815.78

27.87
49.72
49.72
115.25
224.48
552.16
1,098.28
2,190.53
3,501.23
6,122.64

n/a
5.25
5.25
n/a
10.50
19.74
41.16
59.22

n/a
5.94
5.94
n/a
11.88
22.33
46.57
67.01

n/a
6.47
6.47
n/a
12.95
24.34
50.77
73.04

n/a
7.62
7.62
n/a
14.84
26.57
54.54
81.80

n/a
4.38
4.38
n/a
8.36
14.40
29.15
45.28

n/a
4.96
4.96
n/a
9.31
15.52
31.04
49.66

n/a
8.49
15.09
n/a
33.02
59.43
132.07
226.41

n/a
9.51
16.91
n/a
36.98
66.57
147.92
253.58

n/a
10.65
18.93
n/a
41.42
74.55
165.67
284.01

1.20
3.46
7.37
13.25
21.40
45.61
132.47
282.29

Notes:
(1) Rates as of June 30 of each fiscal year.
(2) The District switched from bi‐monthly to monthly billing on January 1, 2014
(3) Rates shown are base rates. The District has been billing Stage 3 Water Emergency Rates since June 1, 2015.
(4) In March 2019 the District adopted a two tier rate structure
Source: Soquel Creek Water District Board of Directors approved rate ordinances and resolutions authorized under California Proposition 218
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Schedule 6
Soquel Creek Water District
Customers by Type at Fiscal Year‐End (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Customer Type
Fiscal
Year

Residential

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Fire Service

13,183
13,206
13,273
13,348
13,448
13,466
13,473
13,478
13,487
13,522

(2)

Landscape

1,280
1,299
1,318
1,361
1,380
1,398
1,413
1,427
1,461
1,509

201
202
207
211
214
215
231
251
261
237

Commercial/
Institutional (3)

Other

708
699
680
676
676
670
661
635
638
649

Total
31
31
38
40
37
37
37
37
35
38

15,403
15,437
15,516
15,636
15,755
15,786
15,815
15,828
15,882
15,955

(1) Number of customers as of June 30 of fiscal year.
(2) Fire service customers also have another type of service and are included in that customer count as well (i.e. residential, etc)
(3) Government customers were reclassified to Commercial/Institutional

Customer by Type of Service
16,000

Number of Customers

14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0

Residential

Fire Service

Landscape

Commercial/Institutional

Other

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 7
Soquel Creek Water District
Principal Customers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago
2019
Percentage of
Total Water Billed

2010
Percentage of
Total Water Billed

Capitola Shores HOA
Seascape Resort
County of Santa Cruz
Pajaro Valley Unified School District
Villas of Capitola HOA
Capitola Knolls
City of Capitola
Tradewinds Mobile Home Park
State of California
Soquel Knolls HOA

1.24%
0.82%
0.77%
0.76%
0.73%
0.71%
0.70%
0.49%
0.48%
0.45%

1.75%
1.36%
0.76%
0.66%
0.57%
0.86%
0.67%
0.25%
0.45%
0.63%

Total

7.15%

7.96%

100.00%

100.00%

Customer

Top 10 Principal Customers 2019
State of California,
0.48%

Soquel Knolls HOA,
0.45%
Capitola Shores HOA,
1.24%

Tradewinds Mobile
Home Park, 0.49%

City of Capitola, 0.70%

Capitola Knolls , 0.71%

Villas of Capitola HOA,
0.73%

Seascape Resort,
0.82%

County of Santa Cruz,
0.77%

Pajaro Valley Unified
School District, 0.76%

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 8
Soquel Creek Water District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal
Year

Bonds
Payable

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

5,635,000
5,085,000
3,625,000
3,039,623
2,446,950
1,846,743
1,238,958
623,392
‐
‐

COP
Payable

Total
Debt

‐
16,800,000
16,800,000
16,800,000
33,975,000
33,625,000
33,265,000
32,895,000
32,515,000
31,535,000

5,635,000
21,885,000
20,425,000
19,839,623
36,421,950
35,471,743
34,503,958
33,518,392
32,515,000
31,535,000

Per
Capita
144.52
569.14
527.51
503.09
921.49
881.64
866.80
828.97
801.95
*

As a Share of
Personal Income
0.34%
1.24%
1.07%
1.01%
1.76%
1.54%
1.46%
1.29%
1.16%
*

* The per capita personal income data is unavailable as of the date of this report

Total Debt by Fiscal Year
$35,000,000
$30,000,000

Total Debt

$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$0

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 9
Soquel Creek Water District
Debt Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Net
Revenues

Fiscal Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

10,612,033
11,486,755
12,560,996
14,135,068
15,076,837
14,452,558
16,025,688
16,365,437
19,825,030
19,507,949

Operating
Expenses(1)

Net Available
Revenues

(7,475,369)
(7,104,015)
(7,360,454)
(8,228,355)
(8,003,864)
(9,275,357)
(11,278,048)
(11,112,813)
(12,165,140)
(13,904,482)

3,136,664
4,382,740
5,200,542
5,906,713
7,072,973
5,177,201
4,747,640
5,252,624
7,659,890
5,603,467

Principal

Debt Service
Interest

535,000
550,000
565,000
585,377
937,673
950,208
967,785
985,566
1,003,392
980,000

212,665
196,615
755,084
795,756
1,275,515
1,540,964
1,522,886
1,504,305
1,485,379
1,464,231

Total
747,665
746,615
1,320,084
1,381,133
2,213,188
2,491,171
2,490,671
2,489,871
2,488,771
2,444,231

Debt Coverage
Ratio(2)
4.20
5.87
3.94
4.28
3.20
2.08
1.91
2.11
3.08
2.30

(1) Operating expenses exclude non‐cash expenses such as depreciation and amortization expense.
(2) Debt coverage ratio based on published financials. Ratios for 2014 and 2015 differs from Management's Discussion and Analysis due to prior
period adjustments.

Changes in Debt Coverage Ratio
Debt Coverage Ratio

7.00
6.00
5.00
4.00
3.00
2.00
1.00
0.00
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 10
Soquel Creek Water District
Demographics and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years
County of Santa Cruz(1)
District
Population(2)

Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Unemployment
Rate

38,991
38,452
38,719
39,436
39,525
40,234
39,806
40,434
40,461
40,545

Population

12.7%
12.3%
11.2%
9.5%
7.8%
6.5%
6.2%
5.5%
4.5%
4.2%

Per Capita
Personal Income

Median Income

272,092
264,824
266,662
271,595
272,210
273,594
274,146
276,603
276,864
274,871

60,247
61,228
65,799
65,282
64,257
65,139
75,929
76,633
79,705
*

42,808
45,770
49,195
49,942
52,280
57,257
59,455
64,028
69,355
*

(1) Only County data is updated annually. Therefore, the District chose to use its data since the District believes that the County data is
representative of the conditions and experience of the District.
(2) Based on estimated data extrapolated from GIS analysis from the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG).
* Income data is unavailable as of the date of this report
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2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Per Capita Personal Income

State of California, Department of Finance and Employment Development Department
U.S. Census Bureau‐Small Area Estimates Branch, U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
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Schedule 11
Soquel Creek Water District
Principal Employers(1)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

(2)

2019

Name of Company
Pajaro Valley Unified School District
Dominican Hospital
Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk
Santa Cruz Governmental Center
University of California ‐ Santa Cruz
Ameri‐Kleen
Poly Inc
Watsonville City Sewer Dept
Larse Farms Inc
Monterey Mushrooms
Mukti for Social Development
Santa Cruz Health Center
Source Naturals
Watsonville Community Hospital
West Marine Products Inc
Audiology Associates
Costco Wholesale
First Alarm
Salud Para La Gente
Santa Cruz County Sheriff
Creekside Farms Inc
Granite Construction Inc
Santa Cruz Metro Transit District
Threshold Enterprises Ltd
Total:
Total County Employment

Average Number
of Employees (3)

Percentage of
Employment

3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
750
750
750
750
750
750
750
750
750
750
375
375
375
375
375
375
375
375
375

2.12%
2.12%
2.12%
2.12%
2.12%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.53%
0.27%
0.27%
0.27%
0.27%
0.27%
0.26%
0.26%
0.26%
0.26%

23,620

16.69%

141,500

(1) The data is for the County of Santa Cruz which is the best geographic grouping that
includes the District's service area
(2) Data for the fiscal period ended nine years ago is not readily available
(3) The average number of employees is the average of the employer size class

Source: California Employment Development Department
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Schedule 12
Soquel Creek Water District
Full‐time Equivalent District Employees by Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Department
Fiscal
Year

District
Administration

Special Projects/
Communications

Conservation/
Customer Service
Field

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

4
3
3
3
3
5
5
5
3
3

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
4
4

8
8
9
7
9
9
8
8
7
7

Engineering

Finance/
Business
Services

Operations
and Maintenance

Total

7
6
6
6
7
7
6
6
6
6

6
6
7
7
7
8
9
9
9
9

15
13
15
16
17
18
17
17
17
17

39
37
41
39
43
47
46
44
46
46

The number of employees is rounded to the nearest whole number

Full‐time Equivalent Employees by Year
50
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Source: Soquel Creek Water District Accounting Department
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Schedule 13
Soquel Creek Water District
Operating and Capacity Indicators
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

District Service Area
(Square Miles)

Miles of
Pipeline

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

17
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
14**

162.7
163.0
163.6
164.8
165.0
165.3
167.0
167.9
169.4
168.3***

Other Operating and Capacity Indicators
Storage
Active Groundwater
Storage Tanks
Capacity (MG)
Wells (standby*)
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18

7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63
7.63

15
15
16
16
16
15
16 (1)
15 (2)
15 (2)
15 (2)

Well
Capacity (MGD)

Fire Hydrants

13.77
13.77
14.40
13.30
13.30
12.80
12.80
12.80
12.16
12.16

1,230
1,232
1,238
1,246
1,251
1,251
1,251
1,252
1,263
1,275

MG ‐ Millions of Gallons
MGD ‐ Millions of Gallons per Day
*The two wells in standby in 2018 are not used for regular operations and are available for use on an emergency basis
**Service Area was overstated in previous years
*** The prior year was over estimated from design drawings

Source: Soquel Creek Water District Engineering Department
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